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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, CENTRAL DISTRICT
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Jurisdiction Over the Unauthorized Law
Practice of

EDDIE RIVAS BONILLA
doing business as SERVICIO LATINO
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Steven J. Moawad, Chief Trial Counsel of the State Bar of]
California (“State Bar”), by and through Senior Trial Counsel Elizabeth Stine, hereby applies to
this court ex parte for interim orders in accordance with California Rules of Court, rule 3.1200 et
seq. and Business and Professions Code séctions 6125 and 6126 et seq.

Not only is the practice of law by non-attorneys unlawful, but the State Bar may apply to
the superior court to assume jurisdiction over the unlawful practice. Business and Professions
Code section 6126.3 states, “[i]n addition to any criminal penalties pursuant to Section 6126 or
to any contempt proceedings pursuant to Section 6127, the courts of the state shall have the
jurisdiction provided in this section when a person advertises or holds himself or herself out as
practicing or entitled to practice law, or otherwise practices law, without being an active member
of the State Bar or otherwise authorized pursuant to statute or court rule to practice law in this
state at the time of doing so.”

As part of a “6126.3" proceeding, the court may order the State Bar to carry out various
functions and duties including:

(1) Examine the files and records of the practice and obtain information as to any pending
matters that may require attention.

(2) Notify persons and entities who appear to be clients of the person of the occurrence of the
event or events stated in subdivision (a) of section 6126, and inform them that it may be
in their best interest to obtain other legal counsel.

(3) Apply for an extension of time pending employment of legal counsel by the client.

(4) With the consent of the client, file notices, motions, and pleadings on behalf of the client
where jurisdictional time limits are involved and other legal counsel has not yet been
obtained.

(5) Give notice to the depositor and appropriate persons and entities who may be éffected,
other than clients, of the occurrence of the event or events.

(6) Arrange for the surrender or delivery of clients' papers or property.

1-
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(7) Arrange for the appointment of a receiver, where applicable, to take possession and
control of any and all bank accounts relating to the affected person's practice.
(8) Do any other acts that the court may direct to carry out the purposes of this section. (Bus.

& Prof. Code § 6126.3).

As stated in Business and Professions Code section 6126.3(j), upon a finding by the court
that it is more likely than not that the application will be granted and that delay in making the
orders described in section 6126.3(e) will result in substantial injury to clients, or to others, the
court, may make interim orders containing such provisions as the court deems appropriate under
the circumstances.

As evidenced by the declarations of Los Angeles Department of Consumer and Business
Affairs Esther Martinez, Los Angeles Deputy City Attorney Travis Austin, Los Angeles City
Attorney’s Office Investigator Frank Capetillo, there is probable cause to believe that (1) Eddie
Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO, Inc,, is engaged in the unauthorized
practice of law in violation of Business and Professions Code section 6126(a); (2) the State Bar
of California has an interest in matters relating to administration, admission, discipline, and
regulation of the practice of law and in matters relating to the administration of justice; and (3)
the interests of one or more of Bonilla’s clients or of an interested person or entity will be
prejudiced if the court does not assume jurisdiction over Bonilla’s unauthorized law practice.

Probable cause is based upon the facts that Bonilla: (1) is not a licensed attorney and he
does not work under the direction or supervision of an attorney; (2) offers his legal services
directly to clients who employ him to represent them in connection with their immigration
matters; and (3) negotiates and accepts fees from clients under the false pretenses that he is a
licensed attorney entitled to represent them in their respective immigration matter(s), or

otherwise qualified to provide the legal services for which he is hired.

2-
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application made by the State Bar for assumption by the court of jurisdiction over Bonilla’s

practice, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6126.3.

California be appointed to do the following:

Furthermore, Bonilla has agreed to cooperate with the State Bar and does not oppose any

' THEREFORGE, the State Bar requests that the court issue an order that the State Bar of

(1) Examine, retrieve, remove, and secure in a protected area all files and records of
Bonilla’s unauthorized practice of law located at 1625 W, Olympic Boulevard, Suite
M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004, or at any other site in California where reliable
evidence establishes that client files or records of the unauthorized law practice may be
stored, and obtain information as to any pending matters that may require attention. The
areas to be examined shall be as described in Attachment A. The items to be retrieved,
removed, and secured in a protected area and examined shall be as described in
Attachment B;

(2) Notify persons and entities whom the State Bar reasonably believes to be Bonilla’s
clients of the occurrence of the event or events stated in subdivision (a) of Section 6126,
and inform them that it may be in their best interest to obtain other legal counsel;

(3) Apply for an extension of time pending employment of legal counsel by the client, if
necessary for the protection of the client’s interests;

(4) Give notice to the depositor and appropriate persons and entities who may be affected,
other than clients, of the occurrence of the event or events;

(5) Arrange for the surrender or deIivery of clients' papers or property;

(6) Apply to the court for the appointment of a receiver, where applicable, to take possession
and control of any and all bank accounts relating to the affected person’s practice;

(7) Do any other acts that may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes of this

section, including but not limited to the following:

-3-
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(i) Photograph and/or videotape the execution of this order as necessary to
document compliance with this Court’s order.

(1) Make and retain electronic or hard copies of all data and information retrieved
in accordance with a court order.

(iii) Retain all client files retrieved from the unauthorized practice and distribute
those client files to the clients,

(iv) Freeze any and all bank accounts in the name of Eddie Rivas Bonilla,
Servicio Latino Legal Office, or SLLSCO, Inc., or any and all law office-related bank
accounts maintained by Eddie Rivas Bonilla, Servicio Latino Legal Office, or
SLLSCO, Inc.

(v) Endorse any check received by the State Bar that is made payable to the order
of Eddie Rivas Bonilla, Servicio Latino Legal Office, or SLLSCO, Inc., or any and all
law-office-related bank accounts maintained by Eddie Rivas Bonilla, Servicio Latino
Legal Office, or SLLSCO, Inc., frozen pursuant to subparagraph (iv), above.

(vi) Direct the appropriate telephone company or companies to disconnect any and
all internet connections, telephone, telefax, DSL., and pager lines associated with
Eddie Rivas Bonilla, Servicio Latino Legal Office, or SLLSCO, Inc., 1625 W,
Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004 (213)427-1212,
and to refer all calls to a specific telephone line at the State Bar, which shall be
established to receive the calls.

(vii) File a change of address notification with the United States Postal Service
to forward all mail addressed to Eddie Rivas Bonilla, Servicio Latino Legal Office, or
SLLSCO, Inc., 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California
90004, to the attention of Elizabeth Stine, State Bar of California, Office of Chief
Trial Counsel, 845 S. Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90017-2515.
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(viii) Open and examine all forwarded mail addressed to Eddie Rivas Bonilla,
Servicio Latino Legal Office, or SLLSCO, Inc.
MOREOVER,

(8) Eddie Rivas Bonilla, or any other knowledgeable person found on the any of the premises|
of the unauthorized law practice, should be ordered or authorized to provide to the State
Bar any and all passwords and/or protocols required to access the electronic data stored
on any computer processing unit located at any of the premises of the unauthorized
practice and/or removed from the unauthorized law practice pursuant to this order.

(9) Eddie Rivas Bonilla, or any other person who is a signatory on any bank account frozen
pursuant to subparagraph (iv), above, should be ordered or authorized not to withdraw
any funds from any frozen account prior to the freeze order becoming effective.

(10) Any and all financial institutions should be ordered or authorized to provide, forthwith at
the time of service of a copy of this order, a true copy of signature cards, the account
numbers, and the last available monthly statements of any and all accounts frozen
pursuant to subparagraph (iv), above, and should be ordered or authorized to disclose to
the State Bar the balance of the frozen account(s) at the time of service without further
order or subpoena.

(11) The appropriate telephone company or companies should be ordered or authorized to
disconnect any and all telephone, telefax, and pager lines associated with the
unauthorized law practice at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles,
California 90004 (213) 427-1212, and to refer all calls to a specific telephone line at the
State Bar, which shall be established to receive the calls.

(12) The owner, manager, or any custodian of the premises should be ordered or authorized
to unlock the doors and provide access to the premises. If such owner, manager or
custodian cannot be located, any qualified locksmith should be ordered or authorized to
secure entry upon request of the State Bar using such devices or techniques as are

-5
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standard in the industry,

(13) Eddie Rivas Bonilla, and/or any person having possession of any files and/or records
associated with the unauthorized practice of law, including electronic data stored on
computer processing units or in any other form or format, irrespective of site, should be
ordered or authorized to maintain such files and records intact, without alteration or
change of location, and to turn over all such files and records to the State Bar.

(14) The United States Postal Service should be authorized to enter a change of address for
all mail addressed to Eddie Rivas Bonilla, Servicio Latino Legal Office, or SLLSCO,
Inc., 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004, to the
attention of Elizabeth Stine, State Bar of California, Office of Chief Trial Counsel, 845 S.
Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90017-2515.

(15) Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO, Inc., should be ordered
to immediately cease and desist from: (1) holding himself or themselves out as entitled to
practice law in California; (2) offering to perform or actually performing any act that
constitutes the unauthorized practice of law in violation of Business and Professions
Code section 6126(a); (3) entering into any oral or written contractual agreement with
any individual or business to provide any service the performance of which would
constitute the unauthorized practice of law; and (4) receiving any money or fees from any
individual or business for any service the performance of which would constitute the
unauthorized practice of law.

In addition, the State Bar requests that the court issue an interim order enjoining and

restraining each and all defendants from engaging in the unauthorized practice of law pursuant to

Business and Professions Code section 6030.

As the administrative arm of the California Supreme Court dealing with attorney

discipline and the administration of justice, the State Bar has a duty to prevent the destruction

and/or secretion of client files or other law office records and to rectify the continuing harm
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suffered by clients whose case is being worked on by non-attorneys engaged in the unauthorized
practice of law. This duty constitutes good cause to grant the ex parte relief requested.

This application is made in accordance with California Business and Professions Code
sections 6126(j) and 6030 since, based upon the facts and circumstances outlined in detail below,
it is more likely than not that the court will grant the State Bar's application for assumption of
jurisdiction and because a delay in issuing interim orders will result in substantial injury to
clients and/or others.

This ex parte application is based upon the attached Memorandum of Points and
Authorities, as well as on the Petition and Verified Application for Assumption of Jurisdiction
Over the Unauthorized Law Practice of Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office,
SLLSCO, Inc., and the original supporting declarations of Esther Martinez, Travis Austin, and
Frank Capetillo, and the attachments thereto, all of which are attached to the State Bar’s Petition
and Verified Application filed contemporaneously herewith and hereby incorporated by

reference.

Respectfully submitted,
THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA
OFFICE OF CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL

Dated: ~\'%° '\ \ BY: é%% '
ELIZ THS E

Senior Trial Counsel
Attorneys for the Plaintiff
THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L STATEMENT OF FACTS

Eddie Rivas Bonilla is doing business as Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO, Inc.,
and maintains or recently has maintained his principal office at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard,
Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004. (See Declaration of Esther Martinez 11,
hereinafter “Martinez Decl.,” attached hereto.) Bonilla is not and never has been an active
member of the California State Bar, and he has never been otherwise authorized to practice law
in California pursuant to statute or court rule. (See Declaration of Frank Capetillo § 3a,
hereinafter “Capetillo Decl.,” attached hereto.).

On November 19, 2015, Los Angeles County Department of Consumer and Business
Affairs Investigator Esther Martinez (“Martinez”) conducted a joint investigation with the Los
Angeles City Attorney’s Office (“LACA?”) targeting Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO,
Inc., located at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004. The
purpose of the investigation was to determine if Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal
Office, SLLSCO, Inc., was engaged in the unlawful practice of law and if he was out of
compliance with the Immigration Consultant’s Act, including Business and Professions Code
sections 22442.2(a) and 22443.3.' (Martinez Decl. 13)

On November 19, 2015, Martinez observed Bonilla’s name on the directory of the

building at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 90004, the location at which

' Business and Professions Code section 22447 2(a) requires that an immigration consultant
display evidence of the bonding requirement, a statement that the immigration consultant is not
an attorney, the services the consultant provides and the fee for those services, and the name of
each immigration consultant employed at the location.

Business and Professions Code section 22443.3 makes it unlawful to disseminate by any means
any statement that the person engages or proposes to engage in the business or acts in the
capacity of an immigration consultant unless that person has on file with the Secretary of State a
disclosure statement and a bond.
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Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO, Inc. is located. Bonilla’s name
was under the “Attorney™ category on the directory. (Martinez Decl. Y 4, and Exhibit 1 thereto.).

In an undercover capacity and posing as a prospective client in need of immigration
services, Bonilla advised Martinez to apply for asylum; informed her she had an 85% to 90%
chance of success; and quoted her an up-front fee of $5,000 to prepare all documents, file all
documents, provide for all necessary document replies; and, provide legal counseling. (Martinez
Decl. §6.). As she was leaving his office, Bonilla provided Martinez with a business card that
contained his name and, underneath his name, were the words “Attorney Services.” (Martinez
Decl. 1 8, and Exhibit 3 thereto.)

On April 10, 2017, Bonilla pled nolo contendere to violation of Business and Professions
Code section 6126(a), the unauthorized practice of law. (See Declaration of Travis Austin 4,
hereinafter “Travis Decl.,” attached hereto.) As a result, imposition of sentence was suspended
and Bonilla was placed on twenty-four months of summary probation on the following terms and
conditions:

» Pay a fine of five-hundred dollars ($500) and the state penalty assessment of one-

thousand four hundred and fifty dollars ($1,450);

¢ Perform 10 days of community labor;

* Submit yourself to booking by law enforcement;

* Cooperate with the Department of Consumer and Business A ffairs; and

» Obey all laws and orders of the Court. (Travis Decl. 14.).

On May 16, 2017, Martinez conducted follow up investigation at Bonilla’s office located
at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004, and determined,
based on her observation and an interview with a prospective “client” who was at the location,
that Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCOQ, Inc., was still in operation.
(Martinez Decl. §13.)
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On June 30, 2017, a probation revocation hearing was held and Bonilla stipulated to
violating probation imposed on April 10, 2017. Probation was revoked and reinstated with the
following new terms and conditions:

¢ 90 days county jail imposed and suspended:

* Perform an additional 10 days of community labor;

* Pay an additional five-hundred dollar ($500) fine and the state penalty assessment and

assessments;

* Cooperate with the State Bar and not oppose any application made by the State Bar for

assumption by the court of jurisdiction over Bonilla’s practice, pursuant to Business and

Professions Code section 6126.3; and

¢ Do not tamper, alter, or remove any client files in Bonilla’s possession. (Travis Decl.

16.).

II. BONILLA IS ENGAGED IN THE UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF LAW.

Business and Professions Code section 6125 states: “[n]o person shall practice law in
California unless the person is an active member of the State Bar.”

Business and Professions Code section 6126(a) states, in relevant part, “[alny person
advertising or holding himself or herself out as practicing or entitled to practice law or otherwise
practicing law who is not an active member of the State Bar, or otﬁerwise authorized pursuant to
statute or court rule to practice law in this state at the time of doing so, is guilty of a
misdemeanor . ...”

Giving legal advice and the preparation of legal instruments, whether or not rendered in
the course of litigation, is the practice of law. (State Bar of California v. Superior Court (1929)
207 Cal.323, 335) One such act is sufficient. (People v Ring (1937) 26 Cal. App.2d Supp. 768,
770-771.)

“‘The cases uniformly hold that the character of the act, and not the place where it is
performed, is the decisive element, and if the application of legal knowledge and technique is
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required, the activity constitutes the practice of law . . . .”” (Benninghoffv. Superior Court
(2006) 136 Cal. App 4th 61, 68, quoting Baron v. City of Los Angeles (1970) 2 Cal.3d 535, 543.)

In People v. Merchants Protective Corp. (1922) 189 Cal. 531, 53 5, the California
Supreme Court considered whether member merchants could incorporate to provide its members
with legal services. In defining the practice of law, the Court relied on several out-of-state cases
including Eley v. Miller (1893) 7 Ind. App. 529, 535; 34 N. E. 836, which said, “[a]s the term is
generally understood, the practice of the law is the doing and performing services in a court of
Justice in any matter depending therein throughout its various stages and in conformity with the
adopted rules of procedure. But in a larger sense it includes legal advice and counsel and the
preparation of legal instruments and contracts by which legal rights are secured although such
matter may or may not be pending in a court.” The Court also relied on People v. Alfani (1919)
227 N.Y. 334,125 N. E. 671, which held, “[i]t is common knowledge for which the above
authorities were hardly necessary, that a large, if not the greater work, of the bar today is out of
court, or office work. Counsel and advice, the drawing of agreements, the organization of
corporations and preparing papers connected therewith, the drafting of legal documents of all
kinds, including wills, are activities which have been long classed as law practice.”

Birbrower, Montalbano, Condon & Frank v. Superior Court (1998) 17 Cal.4th 119,
involved a legal malpractice case against a New York law firm whose attorneys traveled to
California to negotiate the settlement of a dispute and who filed for arbitration. The Court
considered whether the unauthorized practice of law would act to deprive the New York firm of
its disputed fees and found that the prohibiting the unauthorized practice of law is designed to
ensure that those providing legal services do so competently. The Court concurred with People
v. Merchants Protective Corp, supra, in finding that the practice of law included “in its definition
legal advice and legal instruments and contract preparation, whether or not those subjects were
rendered in the course of litigation.” (Birbrower, Montalbano, Condon & Frank v. Superior
Court, id., at 128.)
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In Baron v. City of Los Angeles (1970) 2 Cal.3d 535, the California Supreme Court
considered whether a requirement that an attorney register as a lobbyist was preempted by the
right of the State to regulate the practice of law. In reaching the question, the Court relied on
State Bar of California v. Superior Court (1929) 207 Cal. 323, 331, and its holding that “the
profession and practice of the law, while in a limited sense a matter of private choice and
concern insofar as it relates to its emoluments, is essentially and more largely a matter of public
interest and concern, not only from the viewpoint of its relation to the administration of civil and
criminal law, but also from that of the contacts of its membership with the constituent
membership of society at large, whose interest it is to be safeguarded against the ignorance or
evil dispositions of those who may be masquerading beneath the cloak of the legal and
supposedly learned and upright profession.”

The Supreme Court again affirmed the holding of People v. Merchants Protective Corp.,
supra, and stated, “[i]t is difficult to draw logical distinctions among the varied services
performed by lawyers for their clients and to determine that only some of the services constitute
the *practice of law.” In a pragmatic sense, the practice of law encompasses all of the activities
engaged in by attorneys in a representative capacity, including legislative advocacy.” (Baron v.
City of Los Angeles (1970) 2 Cal.3d 535, 542.)

In determining whether or not a particular activity involved the practice of law, the Baron
Court applied the following test: “[i]n close cases, the courts have determined that the resolution
of legal questions for another by advice and action is practicing law “if difficult or doubtful legal
questions are involved which, to safeguard the public, reasonably demand the application of a
trained legal mind.”” (Baron v. City of Los Angeles, id. at 543, quoting Agran v. Shapiro (1954)
127 Cal. App.2d Supp. 807, 818.)

Here, Bonilla has never been admitted to the State Bar of California. Nonetheless, he
misled clients into believing that he is an attorney entitled to perform legal services on their
behalf in immigration matters, and therefore authorized to practice law.
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Moreover, there is probable cause to believe that there are numerous clients and that there
are active client files at Bonilla’s office located at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107,
Los Angeles, California 90004.

In summary, there is probable cause to believe that Bonilla is engaged in the
unauthorized practice of law based on the following facts: (I) he identified, or held himself out,
to clients and potential clients as entitled to represent them in their respective immigration
matters; (2) he obtained employment from clients to render legal services on their behalf under
the false pretense that he was an attorney entitled to perform legal services; and (3) as recently as
May 16, 2017, after Bonilla pled no contest to violating Business-and Professions Code section
6126 (the unauthorized practice of law), he was offering and performing unauthorized legal
services directly to consumers, and appears to maintain active files involving pending matters at
his principal office, which is located at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles,
California 90004, (Martinez Decl. §13.)

II. THE INTEREST OF CLIENTS WILL BE PREJUDICED IF THIS PROCEEDING IS
NOT MAINTAINED.

Bonilla’s clients will be prejudiced if the court does not assume jurisdiction over his
illegal and unauthorized practice of law. Based on Martinez’s observations during her May 16,
2017, follow up investigation at Bonilla’s office, there is probable cause to believe that there are
current clients who may be suffering harm due to Bonilla’s continuing unauthorized legal
representation in immigration matters, including those with upcoming court dates. (Martinez
Decl. q13.)

Moreover, there is substantial evidence that the public, the legal profession, and the
administration of justice, will be prejudiced if the court does not assume jurisdiction over
Bonilla’s unauthorized practice of law. “Two public policies underlie the strictures against the
unlicensed practice of law. First, attorneys must be licensed so that the public is protected from
being advised and represented by persons who are not qualified to practice law . . .. Second, the
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litigation of cases by unlicensed attorneys threatens the integrity of the judicial process itself.”
(Russell v. Dopp (1995) 36 Cal.App.4th 765, 773.)
IV. THIS COURT HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ASSUME JURISDICTION OVER THE
UNAUTHORIZED LAW PRACTICE OF A NON-ATTORNEY.
Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 expressly empowers the superior courts of
California to assume jurisdiction over an unauthorized law practice of a non-attorney.

Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 (a) states:

In addition to any criminal penalties pursuant to Section 6126 or to any contempt
proceedings pursuant to Section 6127, the courts of the state shall have the
Jurisdiction provided in this section when a person advertises or holds himself or
herself out as practicing or entitled to practice law, or otherwise practices law,
without being an active member of the State Bar or otherwise authorized pursuant
to statute or court rule to practice law in this state at the time of doing so.

Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 (b) states:

The State Bar, or the superior court on its own motion, may make application to
the superior court for the county where the person described in subdivision (a)
maintains or more recently has maintained his or her principal office for the
practice of law or where he or she resides, for assumption by the court of
jurisdiction over the practice to the extent provided in this section. In any
proceeding under this section, the State Bar shall be permitted to intervene and to
assume primary responsibility for conducting the action.

Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 (c) states:
An application made pursuant to subdivision (b) shall be verified, and shall state
facts showing all of the following:
(1) Probable cause to believe that the facts set forth in subdivision (a) of
Section 6126 have occurred;
(2) the interest of the applicant;
(3) probable cause to believe that the interests of a client or of an
interested person or entity will be prejudiced if the proceeding is not
maintained.

Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 (d) states:

The application shall be set for hearing, and an order to show cause shall be
issued directing the person to show cause why the court should not assume
jurisdiction over the practice as provided in this section. A copy of the
application and order to show cause shall be served upon the person by personal
delivery or, as an alternate method of service, by certified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, addressed to the person either at the address at which he
or she maintains, or more recently has maintained, his or her principal office or at
the address where he or she resides. Service is complete at the time of mailing,
but any prescribed period of notice and any right or duty to do any act or make

any response within that prescribed period or on a date certain after notice is
served by mail shall be extended five days if the place of address is within the
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State of California, 10 days if the place of address is outside the State of
California but within the United States, and 20 days if the place of address is
outside the United States. If the State Bar is not the applicant, copies shall also be
served upon the Office of the Chief Trial Counsel of the State Bar in similar
manner at the time of service on the person who is the subject of the application.
The court may prescribe additional or alternative methods of service of the
application and order to show cause, and may prescribe methods of notifying and
serving notices and process upon other persons and entities in cases not
specifically provided herein.

Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 (e) states:

If the court finds that the facts set forth in subdivision (a) of Section 6126 have
occurred and that the interests of a client or an interested person or entity will be
prejudiced if the proceeding provided herein is not maintained, the court may
make an order assuming jurisdiction over the person's practice pursuant to this
section. If the person to whom the order to show cause is directed does not
appear, the court may make its order upon the verified application or upon such
proof as it may require. Thereupon, the court shall appoint one or more active
members of the State Bar to act under its direction to mail a notice of cessation of
practice, pursuant to subdivision (g), and may order those appointed attorneys to
do one or more of the following:

(1) Examine the files and records of the practice and obtain information as

to any pending matters that may require attention,

(2) Notify persons and entities who appear to be clients of the person of

the occurrence of the event or events stated in subdivision (a) of Section

6126, and inform them that it may be in their best interest to obtain other

legal counsel.

(3) Apply for an extension of time pending employment of legal counsel

by the client.

(4) With the consent of the client, file notices, motions, and pleadings on

behalf of the client where jurisdictional time limits are involved and other

legal counsel has not yet been obtained.

(5) Give notice to the depositor and appropriate persons and entities who

may be affected, other than clients, of the occurrence of the event or

events,

(6) Arrange for the surrender or delivery of clients' papers or property.

(7) Arrange for the appointment of a receiver, where applicable, to take

possession and control of any and all bank accounts relating to the affected

person's practice.

(8) Do any other acts that the court may direct to carry out the purposes of

this section.

The court shall have jurisdiction over the files and records and over the practice of
the affected person for the limited purposes of this section, and may make all
orders necessary or appropriate to exercise this jurisdiction. The court shall
provide a copy of any order issued pursuant to this section to the Office of the
Chief Trial Counsel of the State Bar.

10310

This court has authority to assume jurisdiction over the unauthorized law practice of
Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO, Inc.
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V. ASSUMPTION OF JURISDICTION OVER BONILLA’S UNAUTHORIZED
PRACTICE OF LAW IS APPROPRIATE.

As evidenced by the declarations of Los Angeles Department of Consumer and Business
Affairs Investigator Esther Martinez, Los Angeles Deputy City Attorney Travis Austin; and Los
Angeles City Attorney’s Office Investigator Frank Capetillo, there is probable cause to believe
that Bonilla: (1) is not and never has been entitled to practice law in California, and he is not
otherwise authorized pursuant to statute or court rule to practice law in this state at any time; (2)
is holding himself out as entitled to practice law, or recently has held himself out as entitled to
practice law, and is practicing, or has recently practiced law out of his office located at 1625 W.
Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004; (3) is offering, or until
recently has offered, unauthorized legal services to his clients; and (4) maintains active files at
his office located at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107, Los Angeles, California 90004.
Consequently, there is probable cause to believe that the interests of a client or of an interested
person or entity will be prejudiced if this proceeding is not maintained.

Since Bonilla is engaging or has recently engaged in the unauthorized practice of law,
and the interests of a client or an interested person or entity will be prejudiced if the proceeding
provided herein is not maintained, the State Bar respectfully submits that this court should
assume jurisdiction over Bonilla’s unauthorized law practice pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 6126.3.

V1. THIS COURT IS AUTHORIZED BY STATUTE TO ISSUE A CEASE AND DESIST
'ORDER TO A NON-ATTORNEY WHO IS ENGAGED IN THE UNAUTHORIZED
PRACTICE OF LAW WHEN THE COURT ASSUMES JURISDICTION OVER
THE PRACTICE.

Business and Professions Code section 6126.3(e) provides in relevant part that once the
court assumes jurisdiction over an unauthorized practice of law, “[t]he court shall have
Jurisdiction over the files and records and over the practice of the affected person for the limited
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purposes of this section, and may make all orders necessary or appropriate to exercise this
Jurisdiction.” Section 6126.3(e) is based on Business and Professions Code section 6180.5, and
similarly provides that “[t]he court shall have jurisdiction over the files and records and law
practice of the affected attorney for the limited purposes of this section, and may make all orders
necessary or appropriate to exercise this jurisdiction.” ‘

In Benninghoff'v. Superior Court (2006) 136 Cal. App. 4th 61, 66, the Court of Appeal
stated, “the ultimate determination to assume jurisdiction over a law practice rests in the court’s
discretion. The statute says the court ‘may make an order assuming jurisdiction’ if the lawyer
dies or ceases active membership in the State Bar.’ [Citations.] . .. The court’s decision to
assume jurisdiction over a practice to protect the clients is akin to a decision to appoint a
receiver, which calls for the exercise of discretion.” Although it was not an issue on appellate
review, the Superior Court’s permanent order in the Benninghoff matter included cease and
desist provisions.

Thus, once the court determines, in its discretion, that assumption of jurisdiction over an
unauthorized law practice is appropriate to protect clients, Business and Professions Code
section 6126.3(e) grants the court the additional discretion to “make all orders necessary or
appropriate to exercise this jurisdiction.” Since the primary requirement for the court to assume
jurisdiction over a law practice pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6126.3 is that
the affected person be engaged in the unauthorized practice of law, it follows that the court take
all “necessary and appropriate” steps to ensure that the “affected person” ceases and desists from
the very conduct that has caused the court to intervene to protect the victim clients.

In addition, Business and Professions Code section 6126.3(e)(8) states, “[t]he court shall
have jurisdiction over the files and records and over the practice of the affected person....”
(Emphasis added.) It is therefore apparent that the legislature intended that the court do more
than superintend the files and records of the practice. Thus, the court should not only assume
jurisdiction over the unauthorized law practice of Eddie Rivas Bonilla, and the files and records
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associated therewith, the court should also order Eddie Rivas Bonilla to stop engaging in the
activities that constitute the unauthorized practice of law and which cause harm to the innocent
victims the court is acting to protect.

VII. THE COURT HAS AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AN INJUNCTION.

Business and Professions Code section 6030 provides that the violation or threatened
violation of any provision of section 6126.3 may be enjoined in a civil action brought in the
superior court by the State Bar and no undertaking shall be required by the State Bar.

Pursuant to section 6030, this court is authorized to grant injunctive relief as it may deem
appropriate in the enforcement of section 6126.3.

Here, an injunction is appropriate in the enforcement of Business and Professions Code
section 6126.3 due to Bonilla’s current unauthorized practice of law. Until the court actually
enters an injunction to prevent Bonilla from committing these acts, there remains a concern that
Bonilla will relocate his illegal business or otherwise continue to defraud the public, particularly
the unwitting immigration communities.

VIII. THE COURT HAS AUTHORITY AND GOOD CAUSE EXISTS TO GRANT THE
RELIEF REQUESTED EX PARTE.

California Rules of Court, rule 3.1202(c) requires that good cause be shown by any an
affirmative showing of irreparable harm, immediate danger, or any other statutory basis for
granting relief ex parte. In this case, a showing has been made that Bonilla’s clients may be
suffering harm due to his unauthorized legal representation in immigration matters,

Therefore, good cause exists to grant the requested relief ex parte.

IX. CONCLUSION

Based on the facts and circumstances of this matter as detailed above, the State Bar
respectfully requests that the court issue interim orders appointing Steven J. Moawad, Chief Trial
Counsel of the State Bar of California, and his designees, to act under its direction to obtain
physical possession of the client files and financial records and undertake such other duties as
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may be required to protect the interests of Bonilla’s clients and other interested parties, as

delineated herein. Additionally, the State Bar requests that the Court issue an Interim Injunction.

Respectfully submitted,
THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA
OFFICE OF CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL

Dated: N 92" \T\ BY: @%

ELIZABETH STINE )

Senior Trial Counsel

Attorneys for the Plaintiff

THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA
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Attachment A

The area examined shall be Eddie Rivas Bonilla dba Servicio Latino Legal Office,
SLLSCO, Inc., unauthorized law practice located at 1625 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite M-107,
Los Angeles, California 90004, or at any other location in California where reliable evidence
establishes that client files or records of the unauthorized law practice may be stored.

The examination area shall include all locked or unlocked rooms, attics, basements, file
cabinets and other storage devices and areas and other parts therein and the surrounding grounds
and any garages, storage areas, trash containers and outbuildings of any kind located thereon,
under the care, control and/or custody of persons located at the law offices.

The examination shall also include any and all computers, and any other storage of
electronic information, brief cases, satchels, backpacks, day planners or purses under the care,
custody and/or control of persons located at the law offices.

111
111
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Attachment B

The items to be retrieved, secured, and examined shall include all client files and client
records including, but not limited to, notes, memoranda, reports, correspondence, and other
documents pertaining to legal or investigative service sought or provided, compensation sought
or obtained for clients, and disbursement of client funds.

The items to be retrieved, secured and examined shall include all law office records,
including, but not limited to, office memoranda, ledgers, journals, financial statements, checking
and savings account records, bank statements, cancelled and uncancelled checks, cash, check
ledgers, check registers, bank signature cards, bank books, deposits, withdrawals, legal files, and
bank or other financial records, evidencing the obtaining, secreting, transferring, or concealing of]
assets.

The items to be retrieved, secured, and examined shall include any of the above-
described evidence whether printed, hand-produced, or recorded photographically, electronically,
mechanically, or by any other means. Where a file or record is maintained in a mechanical
device such as cellular phone, fax machine, computer, video or audio apparatus, magnetic tapes,
flash drive, discs (floppy, mini, CD, laser, flash drive, and hard drive), such apparatus in its
entirety including complete hardware, supporting software for data retrieval, and material
describing operation of the apparatus shall be retrieved, removed, and secured.

Where records and files are stored or maintained in a file cabinet or similar unit, the file
cabinet or unit may be retrieved, removed, and stored with the records and files intact.

/11
Iy
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DECLARATION OF ESTHER MARTINEZ

1, Esther Martinez, declare as follows:

1. Yam currently employed as an investigator for the Los Angeles County Department of
Consumer and Business Affairs (“LADCBA™) and have been employed in this capacity since 2007. 1
have experience investigating immigration fraud and immigration consultants, I have interviewed
numerous victims of immigration fraud and have performed on-site inspections to verify compliance
with the Immigration Consultant’s Act, Business and Professions Code section 22440, et seq.. Iam
fluent in both English and Spanish', I was the assigned lead investigator in People v. Eddie Bonilla,
Case # 6CJ00094.

2. I make this declaration in support of the State Bar’s application pursuant to Business
and Professions Code section 6126.3, The facts set forth in this declaration are personally known to
me unless otherwise stated, and as to those, I am informed and believe them to be true.

3. On November 19, 2015, I conducted a joint investigation with the Los Angeles City
Attorney’s Office (“LACA™). The investi gation targeted Servicio Latino Legal Office, Inc. (“Servicio
Latino™), located at 1625 West Olympic Boulevard, Suite M107, in the City of Los Angeles
(“Location”), The purpose of the investi gation was to determine whether Servicio Latino and its
principal, Eddie Rivas Bonilla (“Bonilla™), was engaged in the unlicensed practice of law and was out
of compliance with the Immigration Consultant’s Act.

4, Upon arriving at the Location, I observed Bonilla’s name on the building directory
under the “Attorney” category. A true and correct copy of a photograph identifying Bonilla’s name
under the “Attorney” category that I observed is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

5. Upon entering the officc of Servicio Latino, T did not observe any of the legally required
notices or signs posted or displayed as mandated by the Immigration Consultant’s Act in violation of
Business and Professions Code section 22440, et seq.

6. Shortly thereafter, I was introduced to Bonilla and followed Bonilla into his personal
office. In an undercover capacity, posing as a prospective client in need of immigration assistance, |
told Bonilla about my fictional circumstances and inquired as to whether Bonilla would be able to

assist. Based upon this conversation, Bonilla conveyed to me the following information:
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* Based upon my circumstances, my only option to stay in this country is
through an asylum application; and

* 1 had an 85% to 90% chance of success; and

* For an up-front fee of five-thousand dollars ($5,000) Bonilla would prepare
all documents, file all documents, provide for all necessary document
replies, and provide legal counseling.

7. A true and correct copy of the translated transcription of the conversation between
myself and Bonilla, preparcd by an official interpreter and translator for the Superior Court, in and for
the County of Los Angeles, is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

8. Upon leaving the Location, Bonilla presented me with a business card that contained his
name and, underneath his name, was printed “Attorney Services.” A true and correct copy of the
business card is attached hereto as Exhibit 3,

9. Tam informed and believe that the subsequent investigation revealed that Bonilla is not
licensed to practice law in California and is not authorized under federal law to represent persons
before the Board of Immigration Appeals or the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services.

10.  On April 10, 2017, 1 was present in Division 53 of the Clara Shortridge Foltz Criminal
Justice Center, Los Angeles County, when Bonilla pled “no contest” to violating Business and
Professions Code section 6126, the unauthorized practice of law. Bonilla was placed on twenty-four
months of summary probation and, amongst other conditions, was ordered to obey all laws and
coordinate and cooperate with the LADBCA in a subsequent compliance check.

11.  OnMay 16,2017, I conducted a follow-up investigation at the Location to determine
whether Servicio Latino and Bonilla were in compliance with all laws and, in particular, the
Immigration Consultant’s Act.

12. Upon arrival at the Location, I observed that Bonilia’s name on the building directory
remained under the “Attorney” category. Exhibit 1 accurately depicts the directory that I observed on
May 16, 2017, identifying Bonilla’s name under the “Attorney” category.

13. Upon entering the office of Servicio Latino, it appeared that the office was still in

operation. Bonilla, along with another employee, were present at the Location. During the compliance
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check, a client of Servicio Latino entered the office. 1 interviewed the client. According to the client,
she was at the Location because Servicio was assisting her with a work permit application. In addition
to a client entering Servicio Latino during the compliance check, other indicators that the office was
still in operation include:

* A daily sign-in sheet maintained by Servicio Latino indicate numerous clients
sought services prior to the compliance check. A true and correct copy (with
the telephone numbers redacted) of the sign-in sheet is attached hereto as
Exhibit 4; and

* A posted sign in the office waiting room notified Servicio Latino clients seeking
protection from several federal programs (DACA, Deferred Action, Deferral of
Forced Removal, Suspension of Deportation Order) that a new program related
to minors from Central America was implemented last year; and

¢ According to Bonilla, the Servicio Latino employee assists with answering
phones and performing other office related tasks.

14. Based upon my compliance check, I determined that Bonilla was still operating Servicio
Latino and that this operation continued to be out of compliance with the Immigration Consultant’s
Act. Specifically, Servicio Latino failed to display the required notices and signs, utilized contracts
that failed to meet the legal requirements, and failed to be registered with the California Secretary of

State, as required by law.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is
true and correct.

Executed this 27th day of June, 2017, at Los Angeles, California.

%Wy

Esther Martinez
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PEOPLE vs BONILLA
CASE # CCJ00094




AUDIO CASSETTE TAPE CASE
TAPE TRANSCRIPTION & TRANSLATION
DISCLAIMER

The transcription and translation of the contents of this audio tape recorded material are
based upon the recording as heard on the particular electronic equipment used, the quality of the
recording provided, the speaking speed and upon the content of the conversation as understood
by the translator.

LEGEND

All voices are accompanied by a number to designate the order of appearance in the recording,

MV  Male voice [IA] Inaudible

FV  Female voice {Ul] Unintelligible

UMYV Unidentified male voice ISP?] Uncertain of spelling

UFV  Unidentified female voice [OV}] Overlapping voices

UV Unidentified voice [PH] Phonetic spelling

CV  Child voice [sie]  Error in source language, ie. syntax

grammar, usage, diction, etc.
BMV Background male voice FD Female dispatch BFV  Background female voice

M1 Male informant ITALIC Personal statement

*Grammatical and syntactical errors have been corrected for the sake of clarity
*Incoherent and unfinished statements have been preserved to ensure accuracy



SOURCE LANGUAGE TRANSLATION

[VIDEO FILE #15.001} [VIDEO FILE #15.001]

[starting time: min 00:23] [starting time: min 00:23]

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15,
16.
i7.
18.
19,
20.
21.
22,

23.

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

19", TWO THOUSAND FIFTEEN,
THE TIME IS APPROXIMATELY
ELEVEN A M. THIS IS
INVESTIGATOR ESTHER
MARTINEZ, WITH DEPARTMENT
OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS
AFFAIRS, WITH RAQUEL
ARAGON, INVESTIGATOR WITH
LOS ANGELES CITY
ATTORNEY'S OFFICE. WE ARE
CONDUCTING AN UNDERCOVER
INVESTIGATION OF
SALVADOREAN LEGAL
SERVICES AND EDDY BONILLA,
LOCATED AT 1625 WEST
OLYMPIC BLVD. IN LOS

ANGELES, CALIFORNIA.

[ending time: min 00:44]

FVi: TODAY’S DATE 1S NOVEMBER FV1: TODAY’S DATE IS NOVEMBER

19%, TWO THOUSAND FIFTEEN,
THE TIME IS APPROXIMATELY
ELEVEN A.M. THIS IS
INVESTIGATOR ESTHER
MARTINEZ, WITH DEPARTMENT
OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS
AFFAIRS, WITH RAQUEL
ARAGON, INVESTIGATOR WITH
LOS ANGELES CITY
ATTORNEY’S OFFICE. WE ARE
CONDUCTING AN UNDERCOVER
INVESTIGATION OF
SALVADOREAN LEGAL
SERVICES AND EDDY BONILLA,
LOCATED AT 1625 WEST
OLYMPIC BLVD. IN LOS

ANGELES, CALIFORNIA.

{ending time: min 00:44]
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[starting time: min 05:40]

[VOICES IN THE BACKGROUND]

FV1:

MVI:

FV1;

MV1:

MV1:

Hola.
Hola.
Buenos dias,

Buenos dias.

: Vine a hablar con alguien sobre un

€aso y a ver... a ver si me pueden
ayudar.

Don [UI] no “sté ahorita pero ella lo
esta esperando porque le dijo que
venia como a las once. Sigusta

esperar un ratito,

: Oh siclaro.
: Okey.

: Gracias.

[ending time: min 05:57)

{starting time: min 27:02]

MV1:

FV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

{Como estan?

Bien. [OV]

[starting time: min 05:40]

[VOICES IN THE BACKGROUND)]

MV1:

FVi:

MV1:

EV1:

MV1:

FVI1:

: Hello.
: Hello.

¢ Good morning,

Good moming.

I came to speak to someone about a
case and to sec... to see if someone
can help me.

Mr. [UT] is not here right now but
she’s waiting for him because he told
her that he’d be here around eleven. If
you’d like you can wait for him for a
while.

Oh yes;, of course.

Okay.

Thank you.

[ending time: min 05:57] '

[starting time: min 27:02]

MV1: How are you doing?

FV1:

Fine. [OV]

FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 2
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MV1: [OV] Dios les bendiga.
FV1: Gracias.

MV1: ;Cémo ha estado?
[OVERLAPPING VOICES]
MV1: [OV] ;Cémo anda?
FV1: Bien,

MV1: Tengo cinco minutos, vénganse. [OV]

FV1: [OV] Okey.

MV1: ;Qué andan haciendo ustedes?

FY1: Ah bueno, es la primera vez que
vengo, pero necesito ayuda.
[GIGGLES]

MV1: Venga para aca por favor.

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND)]

[VOICES IN THE BACKGROUND]

MV1: Tome asiento por favor.

FV1: [IA]}

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]

MV1: [IA] Tome asiento. ;En qué podemos
servirle a usted [IA]

FV1: Bueno, para empezar...

MV1: Aja.

MV1: [OV] God bless you.

FV1: Thank you.

MV1: How have you been?

[OVERLAPPING VOICES)

MV1: [OV] How are you?

FV1: Fine.

MV1: Ihave five minutes, come with me.
[OV]

FV1: [OV] Okay.

MV1: What have [plural] you been doing?

FV1: Uh well, this is the first time 1 come,

but 1 do need help. [GIGGLES]

MV1: Come over here, please.

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]

[VOICES IN THE BACKGROUND]

MV1: Have a seat, please.

FV1l: [IA]

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]

MV1: [IA] Have a seat. How can we help
you {IA]

FV1: Well, to begin...

MY1: Uh-huh.

BONILLA / 6CJ00094 FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 3
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BONILLA / 6CJ00094

FV1: .. hace seis meses...

MV1: Aja

FV1: ... estaba ah manejando...

MV1: Ajd

FV1: .. me paré lIa policia.

MV1: Aja.

FV1: Me arrestaron porque yo estaba
tomando.

MV1: Ajs.

FV1: Ahm ah recienmente [sic] me lamaron
de Inmigracion. |

MV1: Okey, déjeme hacerle unas preguntitas
a usted, okey, para mis o menos saber
que hacer con su [IA] [OV]

[OV] [NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]

FV1: Okey.

MV1: Primero, ;de dénde es usted?

FV1: De México,

MYV1: ;En qué afio vino usted a este pais?

FV1: En dos mil siete.
MV1: ;Usted es soltera, casada, qué? [OV]

FV1i: [OV] Soltera,

FV1: .. six months ago...
MV1: Ub-huh.

FV1: .. Iwas uh driving...
MV1: Ub-huh.

FV1: .. the police stopped me.
MV1: Ub-huh.

FV1: Iwas arrested because | was drinking.

MVI1: Ub-huh.

FV1: Uhm uh recently I was called from
Immigration.

MV1: Okay, let me ask you a few questions,
okay, to more or less know what to do
with your [IA] [OV]

[OV] [NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]

FV1: Ckay.

MYV1: First, where are you from?

FV1: From México.

MYV1: What year did you come to this
country?

FV1: Intwo thousand seven.

MV1: Are you single, married, what? {OV]

FV1: [OV]Single.

FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 4
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22

23.

MV1:

F¥Vi:

MV1:

MVI1:

MV1:

MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

FVi1:

MV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ00094 -

¢Cuintos hijos tiene nacidos aca?

(Mande?

(Cuéntos hijos tiene nacidos aci
usted? [OV)

[OV] No tengo ningunos [sic] hijos
aqui.

Okey, ;qué edad tiene usted?

¢ Cuarenta.

Okey. ;Su papa y su mam4 dénde

estan?

: En Meéxico.

iAlguno de ellos es residente,
ciudadano de ac4?

No.

Okey. Ah ;usted en alguna ocas... en

qué afio vino usted a este pais?

Dos mil siete.

Dos mil siete. ;Vino con visa o vino
sin visa?

Sin visa. Vine [UI] [OV)

¢ [OV] ¢La aga... la agarr6 Migracidén?

: No, cuando m... [OV]

MV1:

MVi:

FV1:

How many children do you have that

were born here?

¢ Excuse me?

How many children do you have that
were born here? [OV]

[OV] I don’t have any children here.

MV1: Okay, how old are you?
FV1: Forty.
MVI: Okay, where are your mom and dad?
FV1: In México.
MV1: Is any of them a resident or citizen
here? |
FV1: No.
MV1: Okay. Ah did you at any occ... what
year did you come to this country?
FV1: Two thousaﬁd seven.
MV1: Two thousand seven. Did you come
with or without visa?
FV1: Without visa. 1 came funl{ov)
MVI1: [OV] Did Immigration get... get you?
FV1: No,not when]... [OV]
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MVI: [OV] Okey.

FV1: ... cuando me pasé, no.

MV1: Nunca la han agarrado Migracién.
¢Cuiantas veces ha venido a los
Estados Unidos, [IA], una sola vez?

FV1: §i

MVI: Okey. Y nuﬁca ha regresado a
México.

FV1: ;Desde... desde que vine? [OV]

MV1: [OV] Desde...

FV1: No...[0V]

MV1: [OV] ... desde el dos mil siete.

FV1: .. no.

MV1: Okey. [OV]

FV1: [OV]No.

MV1: ;Tiene usted hermanos ciudadanos
americanos aqui? [OV]

FvV1: [OV]No.

MV1: ;Cuindo usted vino a este pafs, usted
ahm... alguna vez algiin patrén para
quien haiga [sic] trabajado le ha hecho
una peticién por medio del trabajo?

FV1: No.

_ MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

MV1:

FV1:
MV1:
FV1:
MV1:
Fvi:
MVi:
FV1:

MV1:

FVE:

MV1i:

FV1:

[OV] Okay.

.-. not when I crossed.
Immigration has never gotten you.
How many times have you come to

the United States, [1A] just once?

: Yes.

Okay. And you have never gone back
to México.

Since... since I came? [OV]

[OV] Since...

No... [OV]

[OV] ... since two thousand seven.

... DO.

Okay. {OV]

[OV] No.

Do you have siblings who are citizens
here? [OV]

[OV] No.

When you came to this country, did
uhm... at any time did an employer
whom you waorked for file a petition
for you through work?

No.

BONILLA / 6CJ00094 FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 6
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MV1: ;Qué grados ha estudiado usted?

: Ah secundaria.

: Okey. ;De qué trabaja aqui ahorita?

FV1: Trabajo enuna... bueno, en una
oficina donde ah fabrican ah maletas.

MYV1: Okey. IT"S OKAY. Ahm ;cuando
tuvo el D... el DUI usted?

KV1: Ahm fueen... febrero.

MV1: ;De este afio?

FV1: Si

MV1: Okey ;y cudndo la llama Migracién a
usted?

FV1: Mj me llamaron hace dos se.., como
casi ya son dos semanas,

MV1: Aj,

FV1: Fuiauna oficina ah... a una cita con

un oficial; me dijeron que eh... dentro
de treinta dias tenia que regresar a una

cita formal... que iban a empezar el

MV1:

MV1:

EV1:

MVI1:

MV1:

FV1;

MV1:

Fvi1:

MV1:

What’s the highest grade you

completed?

: Uh middie school.

Okay. What work do you do right
now?

1 work at a... well, in an office where
they uh manufacture uh suitcases.
Okay. IT"S OKAY. Uhm when did

you get the D. .. the DUI?

: Uhm it was in... February.

Of this year?

Yes.

Okay, and was it that Immigration
called you?

Mh they called me two wee... almost
about two weeks ago.

Ub-huh,

: Iwent to an office uh... to an

appointment with an officer; they told
‘me that uh... that in thirty days I had to

come back for a formal eppointment. ..

procedimiento de deportacién. that they were going to start the
deportation process.
FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 7
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FV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

MV1:

MV1:

MV1:

MVi:

MVi:

MV1: Okey. ;Le hicieron mj varias

preguntas a usted? [OV]
[OV7] Si, unas preguntas personales
pero...

{Coémo... [OV]

: [OV]..ah...

... cudles?

De dénde venia, como cuénto tiempo
he estado aqui; o sea y sab... ya
sabfan que... que estaba aqui
ilegalmente,

Porque ah... ;qué mds le preguntaron?

¢Cuénto tiempo fue mas o menos ...

MV1:

MV1;

Okay. Did they ask you mh several
questions? [OV]
[OV] Yes, some personal questions,

but...

i Like... [OV]

[OV]}..uh..

: ... what?

: Where was I coming fiom, how long

had I been here; I mean and they kn...
they already knew that... that they
were here illegaly,

Because uh ... [OV] ... what else did

they ask you. More or less how long

[OV] WerC...
[OV] Aja... FVI1: [OV] Uh-huh...
: ... usted? MV1: ... you there?
... cuénto tiempo, ahmes... no estuve | FV1: .. how long, uhm it’s... T wasn’t there
ahi mucho tiempo, for too long.
{M4s o menos cudnto tiempo? MV1: About how long, more or less?
Como veinte minutos. FV1: About twenty minutes.
Okey, (Cudles fueron las preguntas MV1: Okay, what were the questions they
que le hicieron? asked you?
FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 8
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FV1:

MVI1:

MV1:

MVi:
FVi:

MV1i:

FV1:
MV1:

FV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

Ahm cua... las mismas preguntas que | FV1: Uhm whi... almost the same questions

me estds haciendo, casi. Ah cuindo you’re asking me. Uh when was it

vine, cudnto tiempo he estado aqui, si that I came, how long have I been

es la primera vez, ahm adénde vivo... here, if it’s the first time, uhm where 1

pero ya... ya tenian mi direccidn, live... but they already... already had
my address.

;Le preguntaron por qué habia. .. MV1: Did they ask you why you had... of

claro, porque va... [OV] course, because the... [OV]

[OV] YEAH... FVi: [OV] YEAH...

: ... la policia se 1a habia dado. [OV] MV1: .. police already had provided it to

them. [OV]

[OV]... aja. FV1: [OV].. uh-huh

(L& preguntaron a usted ahm. .. le MV1: Did they ask you uhm.., did they ask

preguntaron a usted si ah... por qué sc you if uh... why you had come to this

habia venido a este pais? country?

Si. FV1: Yes.

.Y usted qué le dijo? MV1: And what did you tell him?

Para trabajar. FV1: To work.

Okey. ;Cuantos hermanos tiene usted? | MV1: Okay. How many siblings do you
have?

En México tengo dos hermanos. FV1: In Mexico I have two brothers.

Dos, y usted, son tres. MV1: Two, and with you, three

Si. FV1: Yes.

FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 9



10.
11
12.
13.
14,
15,
16.
17.
18.
19,
20.
21.
22.

23.

MV1: ;Aqui tiene mis hermanos usted o no? MV1: Do you have other brothers here, or
[ov) not? [OV]

¥FV1: [OV] No, no tengo nin.., no tengo FV1: [OV]No, Idon’t have a... I don’t have
familiares. [OV] any relatives here. [OV]

MV1: [OV] ;Cémo supo usted de mi? MV1: [OV] How did you find out about me?

FV1: Bueno, hace... como casi ya hacetres | FVI1: Well, it's been. . about almost three
afios... porque ‘orit... rento un cuarto years ago... because right n... I rent a
ahm con unos amigos de familia mfa room, uhm with/to some family
en México. friends from México.

MVI1: Mj. MVI1: Mh

FV1: Y ahi tenian como un... no 5é, como FV1: Andthere they had like a... I don’t
un... tenian la informacion de esta know, like a... they the information
oficina. Y me acuerdo habiendo verla, about this office. And I remember
y lo apunté. Y cuando me paso esto having seen it, and I wrote it down.
entonces. .. So when this happened to me, then. ..

MV1: Vino a verme, okey, Eh iyatermind | MV1: You came to see me, okay. Uh are you
lo del DUT y todo, o eso queda... done with the DUI and all, oris it
sigue en proceso todavia? [OV] still... s it still in process? [OV]

FV1: [OV] Sigue en proceso. FV1: [OV]It’s still in process.

MV1: Okey. ;Cuéndo va a tener la Gltima MV1: Okay. When is your last court date
corte, [UT]? [un?

FV1: Ahm no me acuerdo, pero creo que FV1: Uhm!I don’t remember, but I believe
también es en diciembre. it’s also in December,

BONILLA / 6CJ00094 FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 10
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MVI:

MV1:

MV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

{Ha agarrado usted abogado para la
defensa del DUI?

: No.
: Okey.
: No.

: Bueno mire, le voy a decir una cosa

honesta, jcudndo tiene la corte del

bur?

¢ Nos... no sé exactamente Ia fecha,

pero si es ¢n diciembre.
Cuando tiene la corte usted de de. ..

[OV]

: [OV] Lacitacon...
: Si[OV]

... Inmigracién?

: Si

: Ahm la segunda semana de diciembre.

Okey. La segunda semana de
diciembre. ;Qué quiere usted que yo

haga pues?

: Sieh... bueno, quicro saber si me

pueden ayudar. Obvio no quiero

que...

MV1:

MV1:

FV1:

MVI:

MV1:

EVi:

MV1i:

Have you already gotten an attorney to

defend the DY

: No.
: Okay,
: No.

: Well look, I’’m going to tell you

something straight up, when is your

court date for the DUI?

: ldon’tkn... Idon't know exactly the-

date but in December.

When do you have the court date for,
for... [OV]

[OV] The appointment with.,.

Yes. [OV]

: .. lmmigration?

Yes,

Uhm the second week of December.
Okey. The second week of December.
Well, so what is it that you want me to

do?

¢ Yesuh... well, I want to know if

[plural] you can help me. Obviously |

don’t want to...

FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 11
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MV1: ;Usted... usted quiere quedarse en este
pais?
FV1: Claro que si.

MV1: Mire, le voy a decir una cosa clara._

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND] [0V}

MYV1: [OV] ... basado en las preguntas que
usted me ha contestado. ..

FVi: Mjm.

MV1: .. hay formas como ayudarle, pero ah
esto es Jo que pasa, trabajar en el caso
suyo es bastante dificil, bastante
dificil. Por qué es bastante dificil,
porque bésicamente no hay mucho de
donde agarrarse. La tmica opcién que
usted pudiera hacer bisicamente para
trabajar su caso seria por asilo. Seria
el inico caso de trabajar [sic], no hay

otra forma cémo defender su caso.

FV1: Okey.
MV1: Ahors, para el DUI no ocupe abogado,

que 1o lo necesita. Es una gran

MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

Do you... do you want to stay in this
country?

Of course | do.

Look, I'm going to tell you something

clearly...

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND] [0V]

MV1:

Fvl:

MV1:

MV1:

[OV] ... based on the responses you
have given me to my questions. ..
Mh-hm.

-.. there are ways to help you, but uh
this is what happens, working on a
case like yoﬁs is very difficult, very
difficult. Why it is so difficult,
because basically there’s not much to
grab on to. Basically the only option
you could have for your case to work
out, would be though asylum. That’s
the only way to work your case;
there’s no other way to defend your

case.

: Okay.

Now, for the DUI don’t use an

attorney, because vou don’t need one,
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mentira que un abogado le diga: “me
vas a pagar tanto,” y a la hora de las
hora... pero me viene a ver a mi, eh
un par de dias de ir a la corte, y yo le
voy a decir exactamente los pasos que
usted va a necesitar hacer, para que los
haga por usted misma, y no tenga
que... ah gastar un dinero que usted
no necesita gastarlo, Ahora en ¢l caso
suyo, como le digo, de asilo politico si
yo puedo hacer el caso suyo, eh o sea,
le puedo ayudar.

FV1: Okey.

MV1i: ;Me entiende? Pero le voy a decir
algo, el caso como yo lo trabajo de
asilo, no es como muchos trabajan el
asilo. Yo trabajo por ejemplo el asilo
politico que yo trabajo, es un, un
trabajo donde yo puedo ga... voy a
tener que quedarme con esa persona.
Por ejemplo si trabajara ese caso con
usted, trabajo de las diez de 1a

mafiana, siet... siete, ocho de la noche

FV1:

MY1:

It’s a big lie if an attomey tells you;
“you’ll pay me this much,” and when
time comes... but uh a couple of days
before going to court you come see
me, and I’ll tell you exactly which
steps you need to take, so you can take
them by yourself and you don’t have
to.., uh spend a money that you don’t
need to spend. Now, as I'm telling
you, I can do your case through
political asylum, uh I mean I'll be abie
to help you.

Okay.

You see what 1 mean? But I'm going
to tell you something, the way I work
the case through asylum is not the way
others work the asylum. For instance,
the kind of political asylum I work, is
a, a job where I can wi... I'm going to
have to stay with that person. For
instance, if I were to work on your
case with you, I’d work fiom ten in

the morning, sev... seven, eight in the
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MVI:

FV1:

MV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

por un periodo de cuatro a... a cinco

dias continuos.

: Okey.

Porque le prepare un caso de tal
manera... cuando el caso llega a
Migracion o flega al juez,
automaticamente lo ve muy
convincente, muy se... ah seguro, ah y
le va a dar dos opciones. Launa es
“te cierro el caso, te quedas aqui, y
vele pa’ donde quieras.” Ese ya |
ganamos. Opcion dos es que el fiscal
y €l juez digan ““vamos a proseguir
este caso hasta el final.” Y cuando ¢l
caso lo seguimos hasta el final quicre
decir de que si nosotros pro... ah el
caso prosigue hasta el final, e damos
la chanza [sic] de que con un ochenta
¥y cinco a noventa por ciento que I-lo
ganamos. Pero eso si, yo cobro
minimo solamente por ese caso..,
Aja.

... de cinco mil délares.

FV1;

MVi1:

FV1:

evening for a period of four to... to
five days in & row.

Okay.

Because I prepare the case for you in
such way... when the case gets to

Immigration or it gets to the judge,

he'll automatically see it very

convincingly, very se... uh sure, uh
and will give you two options. One
will be: “I"ll close your case, you stay
here and you can go anywhere you
want.” Option two is that the
prosecutor and the judge say: “we’re
going to prosecute this casc all the
way to the end,” And when we follow
the case until the end, it means that if
we con... uh if the case procedes until
the end, we give you an, an eighty-
five to ninety percent chance of wi-
winning it. But yes, only for that case,
I minimally charge. ..

Uh-huh,

MV1: ... five thousand dollars.

FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 14



+J

10.
11.
12
13.
14.
IS,
16.
17.
18.
195.
20,
21,
22,

23,

FV1: Cinco mil.

MV1: S6lo por ese caso. Ahora oiga bien lo
que le voy a decir, que eso no le
incluye... ah eso le incluye
preparacién de documentos, archivar
documentos, contestar documentos,
hacer todo lo que la corte pida,
asesoramiento legal, ah pero no
representacion en corte. Si quiere
representacién en corte en Migracion,
va a pagar dos mil quinientos délares
adicionales, porque es mucho el
trabajo que le voy a hacer. Pero con
lo que yo le hago, no necesita gastar
los otros dos mil quinientos dolares,
¢okey? No Io va a necesitar. Yo se lo
digo porque yo... a mi no me gusta
quitarle lo que usted [UI] ;Me
entiende?

FV1: Okey, ajd.

MYV1: ‘tonces, o sea que basicamente. ..
ahora la mala noticia en ese caso es. .

de que como es un caso basicamente

FV1:

MV1:

MV1:

Five thousand.

Only for that case. Now listen well to
what I’mgoing to tell you, that doesn’t
include... vh it includes preparation of
documents, filing of documents,
document replies; do everything the
court requires, legal counseliing, uh
but no representation in court. If you
want representation in the
Immigration court, you’ll have to pay
twenty-five hundred additional
dollars; because what I’m going to do
is a lot of work for you. But with
what I do for you, you won’t have to
spend the other twenty»ﬁve hundred
dollars, okay? You won't need to.
I'm telling you because I... I don't like
to take away what you [UI], you see

what I mean?

¢ Okay, uh-huh.

SO I mean basically... now on that
case the bad news are... that because

it is basically a case where lots of
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de mucho trabajo... después que yo
termine un trabajo conmigo, tengo que
pasarlo a una persona que lo tiene que
pasar en limpio [IA], y después eh de
eso lo tengo que pasar en inglés,
porque us...ch su lengua natal por
naturaleza es espafiola, ‘tonces tengo
que prepararlo para que cuando se
presente con ¢i juez, el juez no vayaa
decir que... que usted... se hizo sélo
en inglés y que usted no entiende esto.
Por eso tengo que hacerlo
completamente en espafiol,
completamente en inglés, porque el...
o sea el pais donde estamos ¢s en
inglés. Pero le repito, es bastantisimo
trabajo, verdad. La mala noticia es
que en todos los casos doy BREAK
[sic], pero en ese no doy... no doy
BREAK [sic], tiene que pagarlo de un

solo.

work has to be done... after I finish
working it myself, I have to give it to
a person who’ll make a final copy
[IA] and uh after that, I have to
translate it into English, because y..,
uh your native language by birth is
Spanish, so I have to prepare it so that
when it goes before a judge, the judge
won’t say that... that you... that it was
made only in English and that you’re
not able to understand it. That’s why I
have to do it completely in Spanish,
completely in English, because the... |
mean here in the country we are, it’s
n English. ButI repeat to you, it’s a
huge amount of work, right. The bad
news is that even though in every case
I give a BREAK [sic], in that one I
don’t... I don’t give BREAK [sic],

you’d have to pay it all at once.

FV1: ;Enunsolo?

MV1: Un solo pago. [OV]

BONILLA / 6CY00094

FV1: Allatonce?

MVI1: Allin one payment. [OV]
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FV1: [OV] No lo puedo pagar en abonos?

MV1: No lo puede pagar en abonos. La... le
voy... [OV]

[OV] [NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]

MVI: ... a explicar por qué. {Como se llama
usted?

FV1: Mi nombre es [UI]

MV1: ;Hilda? Larazén Hilda, de esto, de
que cuando yo le ordene a la persona
que trabaje, va a trabajar mis o0 menos
por tres semanas; por tres semanas, y
Yo tengo que tener dinero pa’ pagarle
€sas tres semanas a csta persona.

FV1: Okey.

MV1: Y-y el otro va a estar otras tres
SemManas, o sea que para serle franco,
le...

[ending time: min 36:42)

[VIDEO FILE #15.003] {06:00 min total file]
[starting ticae: min 00:0]]
MV1: .. necesita trabajar su caso; necesita

Uil mes,

FV1: [OV]Ican'tdo it in payments?

MV1: You can’t do it in payments. The...
Pm... Pmgoing to ... [OV]

[OV] [NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]}

MVI: .. explain to you why. What's your
name?

FV1: My name is [UT]

MV1i: Hilda? The reason for this Hilda is,
that when I order the work from this
person, they more or less will have to
work for three weeks, for three weeks;
and [ need to have money to pay that
person for those three weeks.

FV1: Okay.

MV1: And-and the other one will take
another three weeks, so to be honest
with you, I...

[ending time: min 36:42)

[VIDEO FILE #1 5.003] [06:00 min total file]
[starting time: min 00:01]
MV1: .. needs to work your case; it requires

a month,
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FV1: Okey.

MV1: Solamente para armar el caso suyo.
Pero le voy a preparar un caso que
usted va a ver. Por ejemplo en esta
oficina aunque usted no lo crea, yo
tengo cero deportaciones. Yo tengo
esa situacién con [UT].

FV1: Ahokey.

MV1: Y para que haiga [sic] cero
deportacion , quiere decir que que...
que hago... que el trabajo habla solo.

FV1: Claro que si. [OV]

MV1: [OV] Aminomevaaveren... enel
periédico, a mi no me va a ver en
ninguna televisién porque no lo
necesito. Lo que me importa es
ayudar a mi gente. Pero le digo, es
demasiado trabajo que tenemos que
hacer, por eso es de que [UI] ahorita.

FV1: Okey.

MV1: Entonces... [OV]

FV1: [OV] Ahm...

FV1:

MV1:

Fvl:

MV1:

MV1:

FVi:

Okay.

Just to put you case together. But I'm
going to prepare your case in such
way that you’ll see. Por instance,
believe it or not, in this office, | have
zero deportations. That’s the situation
I have with [UT].

Uh okay,

And in order to have zero
deportations, it means that, that... that
I do... that the work speaks for itself.
Of course. [QV]

[OV] You won’t see me in the
newspaper, you won'’t see me on TV,
because I don’t need it. What matters
to me is to help my people. ButI'm
telling you, we need to do a lot of

work; that’s why [UT] right now,

Okay.

MV1: So...[OV]

Fv1:

[OV] Uhm...
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MV1: .. ahora, cuando va a Ja entrevista de | MVI: .. now, when you go the interview
Migracion ahoritita. .. with Immigration right now. ..

FV1: Aji, FV1: Uh-huh.

MVI: ... usted va a estar en un chequeo MV1: ... you'll have to be reporting
rutinario. regularly.

FV1: Okey. FV1: Okay.

MV1: En un chequeo rutinario. Pero eh le MV1: Reporting regularly. But uh 1
recomiendo de que cierre la boca, que recommend you to keep your mouth
no vaya a estar hablando con ellos de shut, to not go there and talk to them

- nada, porque muchas veces ellos estdn about anything, because many times
grabando y estén escribiendo. .. they are recording and writing down..,

FVi: Aja [OV] FV1: Uh-huh. [OV]

MV1: [OV] ... lo que usted estd diciendo. MV1: [OV] ... what you’re saying. Be
Tenga mucho... jel oficial estaba very... was the officer writing down
escribiendo 1... [OV] wh... [OV]

FV1: [OV]Si FV1: {OV] Yes.

MV1: Okeyy... Io que usted le ha estado MV1: Okay, and... what you were telling
diciendo. Okey ahora, cuando este him/her. Okay now, this case for
caso por ejemplo, este caso se tendria instance, should go through cou...
que I en cor... a corte directamente; directly to court, this cannot be carried
esto no lo puede trabajar Migracién. out in Immigration. Why can’t it be
;Por qué no lo puede trabajar carried out through Immigration?
Migracién? Porque Migracién Because Immigration has only one
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MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

| 1% H

MV1:

MV1:

FV1:

BONILLA / 6CJ000%94

solamente tiene un afio para que la
fecha que usted entra, para que
usted. .. para que lo trabajen en
directo. Pasando el afio... SO tiene

que ser el juez el que decide.

: Okey.

Le aviso de todo como es. .. es la cosa.

Ah okey.

(Mjm?

Okey, bueno ah...

Asi es que lo que le digo, mire, el
ratito de alegria, le va a tocar un un
rafo de mucha presidén pero no se

preocupe.

: Okey, jentonces si crees que puedes

ganar el caso?
Si. 8i, ele... ese no es problema.

Esta fresquito, y 1a paso [UI].

FV1:

MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

FV1:

MVI1:

MV1:

year from the time you enter for you
to... for them to be able to carry it out
directly. After that year is over... SO

it’ll have to be the judge who decides.

Okay.

Iinform how everything... everything
the way it is.

Uh okay.

Mh-hm?

Well, okay, uh. ..

So what I'm telling you is that the
little time of joy you had will cost you

a... period of lots of stress, but don’t

worry.

: Okay, so you think you can win the

case?
Yes. Yes, the... that’s not the

problem. It's nice and fresh, and I'll

pass you [UT].
Okey. [OV] FV1: Okay. [OV]
FILES # 15.001, 15.002, 15.003 20
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MV1: [OV] Est4 fresquito, que no lo ha
tenido ningtin abogado, y que no I
han dado deportacién. [OV]

FV1: [OV] Ajdno be...

MV1: .. que no ha habl... casi no ha hablado
nada... pero antes de que haga la corte
[sic} me viene a ver a mi.

FV1: Okey.

MV1: Ah-ah-ah-uh con el oficial, ;jpor -qué?

Yo le voy a decir exactamente qué es
lo que usted va a necesitar hacer,
porque usted no puede hablar. Por
ejemplo si el oficial le da... la quiere

presionar y hacerle preguntas. ..

FV1: Aji.

MV1: ... usted digale “mire, perdéneme, que
estoy en proceso de conseguir un
abogado, y yo quisiera mejor que me
dé tiempo para que traer 2 mi abogado
para la corte.” Aun... aunque sea
mentira.

FVI: Ajs.

MVi:

MV1:

MV1:

MV1:

FVi:

[OV] It’s nice and fresh, no attorney
has had it, and you have not been
given any deportation order, [OV]
[OV] Uh-huh I have not...

- you have not sai... you have hardly
said anything... but before you have
your court date, come see me.

Okay.

Uh-uh-uh-uh-uh with the officer,
why? I'm going to tell you exactly
what you need to do, because you
can’t say anything. For example, if
the officer gives you... if he/she wants
to pressure you and ask you

questions. ..

1 Uh-huh.

. you tell him: “Jook, P'm sorry, I'm
in a process of getting an attorney, and
I"d like you to give me some time to
bring my attormey to court with me.”

Ev...evenit's a lie.

Uh-huh.
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MV1

MV1:

BONILLA / 6C)00094

Porque cuando ya a usted la preparo
con todo el caso suyo, ustedno va a
necesitar abogado, porque va a tener
toditas las respuestas ahf juntas, en...

€n §u... en su mano, ;jme entiende?

Okey.

Porque usted puede Ilevar abogado a
la-corte. Elabogado ensino levaa
ayudar cn corte. Eh eh usted tiene. ..
el abogado simplemente es para
mostrar la transparencia de su caso,
nada més, Sia usted le hacen una
pregunta y se equivocd, ya estuvo, de
ahi Ia agarraron. Y ahi viene la
segunda, ya le encontraron falsa en la
segunda, ahi viene la tercera y ahi
viene la cuarta y ahi viene Ia quinta, y
cuando ya le enredan todo, ya su

abogado no puede hacer mucho.

Okey.

MV1:

MV1:

Fvi:

Because when I prepare you with all
your case, you won’t have the need for
an attorney, because you’re going to
have every single answer with you
there right at... at your... at your hand,
you see?

Okay.,

Because you may take an attorney to
court. The attorney per se is not going
to help you in court. Uh uh you’ll
have to... the attorney is there simply
to show the transparency of your case,
that’s all. If they ask you a question
and you make a mistake, that’s it, they
got you already. And then the second
one comes in, and then they already
found you false on the second one,
and then the third one comes in, and
the fourth one comes in, and the fifth
one comes in, and when they get you
all confused, there’s not much your
attorney can do gbout it.

Okay.
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MV1: Mjm.

FV1: Entonces todo tiene que sera... a una
vez, el pago a una vez,

MV1: Como le repito, en este caso, si, YO no
1o no no... a nadie... permitame, ah si,
en ese caso yo no... no le puedo
ayudar en otra cosa, porque como le
vuelvo a decir, ese caso es demasiado
trabajo. Yo en todo doy BREAK,
menos en ese, porque es mucho
trabajo...

FV1: Aji.

MV1: ...y yo tengo que tener ¢l dinero pa’
pagarle a estas dos personas.

FV1: .Y lo puedo traer en efectivo?

MV1: Puede ser cheque, puede ser efectivo,
como usted quiera y desee, jentiende?

FV1: Mj cuando regrese entonces con qué
te... tengo que regresar, o sea, Con...
[OV]

MYV1: [OV]El acta de nacimiento més que
ta... eh nada. Tiene usted el acta,

¢verdad? [OV)

MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

FY1:

MV1:

MV]:

Mh-hm.

So then everything has to be at... at
once, the payment all at once.

As I reapeat to you, in this case, I
don’t, don’t... to no one... ’'m sorry,
uh yes, in this case I can’t... I can’t
help you in any other way, because as
I repeat to you, this case takes lots of
work. I give a BREAK on everything,
except on this, because it’s too much
work...

Uh-huh

... and 1 have to have the money to
pay these two people.

And can J bring it in cash?

: It can be in check, it can be in cash,

whatever you want and wish, you see?
Mh so when I come back, what do I
have to... I mean come back with...
[OV]

[OV] More than anyth... more than
anything, your birth certificate. You

have your certificate, right? [OV]
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Fvi;

MV1:

[OV] No, no tengo.
Okey, ¢h bueno, ¢no tiene una copia

aunque sea? [OV]

: [OV] S, s, si.
: Ahbueno... [OV]
: [OV] Tengo copia,

: Lo importante es que tenga una copia.

Si usted tiene una copia, con la copia

que tenga, yo ya puedo trabajar bien.

FV1: Bueno.

MV1: Yo no tengo problema, o sea, el
problema, como le vuelvo a decir, es
que tenemos que tener algo. Ahel
acta de nacimiento, porque el a... el
acta de nacimiento es como la rafz del
arbol; de ahi depende todo.

FV1: Okey.

MV1: Sin el acta no le dan pasaporte.

FV1: Okey. [OV]

MVI: {OV]. Pero con el acta puede sacar
pasaporte, pagar lo que se... es lo que
Yo necesito.

BONILLA / 6CJ00094

MV1:

FV1;

MV1:

MV1:

FV1:

MV1:

MV1:

: [OV] No, I don’t have it.

: Okay, uh well, do you have a copy at

least? [OV]

[OV] Yes, ves, yes.

Uh well... [OV]

[OV] I bave a copy.

What matters is that you have a copy.
If you have a copy, with that copy you

have I can work well.

¢ Alright,

I have no problem, I mean as I repeat
to you, the problem is that we need to
have something. Uh the birth
certificate, because the c... the birth
certificate is like the root of the tree;
everything depends on it.

Okay.

Without the certificate they won't give

you a passport.

: Okay. [OV]

[OV] But with the certificate you can
get a passport, pay for what... that’s

what I need.
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FV1: Bueno. FV1: Alright,

MV1: Elacta de nacimiento. MV1: The birth certificate.

FV1: Okey. FV1: Okay.

MV1: ;Le di una tarjeta? MV1: Did I give you a card?

FV1: 8i, si me la da por [IA] [OV] FV1: Yes, would you give it to me [IA]

[OV]

MVI: [OV] Okey, perfecto. MV1: [OV} Okay, perfect.

FV1: Bueno, jentonces nada mas? FV1: Well, so that’s it then?

MV1: Nadamis. Asiesque, yaledigo,ah | MV1: That'sit. So I'm telling vou, uh the
lo inico que vale es dar un conscjo, only valuable thing here is to give you
tenga mucho cuidado, no vaya a an advice, be careful, don’t go out
seguir manejando, eh... [OV] there and start driving, uh ... {OV)

FV1: [OV] Sino, ahorita no estoy FV1: [OV] Yes, no, right now I’m not
manejando. [CHUCKLES] [OV] driving. [CHUCKLES] [OV]

MV1: [OV] Porque le han dade... [OV]) MV1: [OV] Because you have been given. ..

[OV]

FV1: [OV] No estoy manejando, FV1: [OV]TI'm not driving.

MV1: ., PROBATION a usted. Ahora, MV1: ... PROBATION. Now when.... Iﬁave
cuando. .. oiga otra cosa que le vo’ a to tell you something else, when we
decir, cuando hacemos esta peticién file a petition under the Immigration
bajo la ley de Migracion, van a pasar law there will a period of six months
seis meses usted que no va a tener where you’re not going to have a work
permiso de trabajo, pero después de permit, but afier the six months you'll
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11.
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14,
15.
16.
17.
18,
19.
20.
21.
22.

23,
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los seis meses va a teger permiso de
trabaje. Va a sacar un Seguro Social y
va a poder abrirse puertas; lo normal,
y aln mejor...

Fvi: Si[0OV]

MV1: [OV].. que las... [OV] [OV]

FV1: [OV]Si

MVI1: ... que ‘orita tiene.

FV1: Okey.

MV1: Okey, no sc... [OV]

FV1: [OV] Okey...

MVI1: .. preocupe, jokey?

FV1: .. muchas graciss.

MV1: Que Dios los bendiga. [OV]
[OVERLAPPING VOICES]

FV2: Igualmente. [OV]

MYV1: [OV] Se me cuida. [OV]

FV1: [OV] Gracies, igualmente,

MV1: Que les vaya bien, hasta luego. [UT]
[oV]
[OVERLAPPING VOICES]

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND)]

have a work permit. You’ll be able to
get a Social Security card, and you'll
be able to open doars for yourself, the
usual, and even better..,

FVI: Yes [OV]

MYVI: [OV].. ones than the ones... [OV]
[OV]

Fv1: [OV] Yes.

MV1: .. you have now.

FV1: Okay.

MV1: Okay, dorn’t... [OV]

FV1: [OV] Okay...

MVL1: .. worry, okay?

FV1: .. thank you very much.

MV1: God bless you. [OV]

[OVERLAPPING VOICES]

FV2: Likewise. [OV]

MV1: [OV] Take care of yourself. [OV)

FV1: [OV] Thank you, likewise.

MV1: Be well, so long. [UT} [OV]

[OVERLAPPING VOICES]

[NOISES IN THE BACKGROUND]
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[VOICES IN THE BACKGROUND]
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DECLARATION OF INTERPRETER/TRANSLATOR

1, Marfa Luz Gasca, the undersigned, affirm: I am an official interpreter and translator for the
Superior Court, in and for the County of Los Angeles, State of California; I am fluent in the
English and Spanish languages; I have personally performed the 27 Page transcription and/or
translation of the attached audio tape and/or document, Log #, People vs Bonilia, case #
6CJ00094, and the foregoing is a true and correct transcription and/or translation of said CD/tape
and/or document,

1 certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury that [ personally performed the transcription and/or
translation, and that it is accurate and complete.

Executed on; March 5, 2017, at Los Angeles, California.
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Servicio Latino
m Eddie R Bonilla
Attomey Services

1625 W. Olympie Bivd., Sulte MEZZ 107
Los Angeles, CA 90015
Tel: {213) 427-1212 » Fax: (213) 568-2310
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DECLARATION OF TRAVIS AUSTIN

I, Travis Austin, declare as follows:

1. Tam a Deputy City Attorney for the Los Angeles City Attorney’s Office, assigned to
supervise the Consumer Protection Section of the Complex and Special Litigation Division. I am the
assigned prosecutor representing the Plaintiff, the People of the State of California (“the People™), in
People v. Eddie Bonilla, Case Number 6CJ00094. I have personal knowledge of the facts stated in this
declaration, and if called as a witness I could and would competently testify thereto.

2. I make this declaration in support of the California State Bar’s (“State Bar”) application
pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6126.3.

3. On November 16, 2016, the People filed a misdemeanor complaint against Eddie Rivas
Bonilla (“Bonilla”) alleging violations of Business and Professions Code section 6126(a) [the
unauthorized practice of law] and violations of the Immigration Consultants Act, Business and
Professions Code section 22442 2 [failure to conspicuously display mandated notice] and 22443.3
[failure to file a disclosure statement and maintain a bond]. A true and correct copy of the
misdemeanor complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

4. On April 10, 2017, Bonilla pled nolo contendere (no contest) to a violation of Business
and Professions Code section 6126(a) in Division 53 of the Clara Shortridge Foltz Criminal Justice
Center, Los Angeles County. As a result, imposition of sentence was suspended and Bonilla was
placed on twenty-four months of summary probation on the following terms and conditions:

* Pay a fine of five-hundred dollars ($500) and the state penalty assessment of
one-thousand four hundred and fifty dollars ($1,450);
e Perform 10 days of community labor;
* Submit yourself to booking by law enforcement;
* Cooperate with the Department of Business and Consumer Affairs; and
e Obey all laws and orders of the court.
A true and correct copy of the April 10, 2017, advisement and waiver of rights and sentencing order

for Bonilla is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.
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5. On May 31, 2017, the People filed a Request for Revocation of Probation and a Notice
of Probation Violation Hearing based upon allegations that Bonilla continues to violate the
Immigration Consultants Act. A true and correct copy of the Request for Revocation of Probation is
attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

6. On June 30, 2017, a hearing was conducted in Division 53 of the Clara Shortridge Foltz
Criminal Justice Center, Los Angeles County, to determine whether Bonilla was in violation of his
probation for failing to comply with all laws and orders of the court. Bonilla stipulated to the violation
and the court reinstated probation on the same terms and conditions with the following modifications:

* 90 days county jail was imposed and suspended;

* Perform an additional 10 days of community labor;

* Pay an additional five-hundred dollar ($500) fine and the state penalty and
assessments;

¢ Cooperate with the State Bar and do not oppose any application made by the
State Bar for assumption by the court of jurisdiction over Bonilla’s practice,
pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6126.3; and

* Do not destroy, alter, or remove any client files in Bonilla’s possession.

A true and correct copy of the June 3, 2017, Minute Order detailing the modified probation terms for

Bonilla is attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is
true and correct.

Executed this 3rd day of July, 2017, at Los Angeles, California.

7—*‘%-\’ ﬂ—o(

Travis Austin
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNTIA
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, MISDEMEANOR
VA: 12/15/2016 COMPLAINT
Flaintiff, Case number: 6CJ00094
vs. ~
=)
EDDIE RIVAS BONILLA  (05/29/1964; M) SHERRI R. @R—T@ =
Executive 6kﬁiQ§r/Cle§¥
BP6126 (a) - 1 COUNT SR o o=
BP22442.2(a) - 1 COUNT By, e R e
BP22443.3 - 1 COUNT Deputy Clerk = -3
3 TOTAL COUNTS s =
¢ ) Issued by = f: «“
Defendants . MICHAEL N. FEUER .0

City Attorney

By Lo

TRAVIS AUSTIN
Deputy City Attorney
Consumer Protection Unit

COUNT I

Comes now the undersigned and states that he is informed and believes, and
upon such information and belief declares: That on or about 11/19/15 at
and in the City of Los Angeles, in the County of Los Angeles, State of
California, a misdemeanor, to wit, a violation of Subdivision (a) of
Section 6126 of the California Business and Professions Code was committed
by EDDIE RIVAS BONILLAZ (whose true name (s) to affiant is(are) unknown)
who at the time and place last aforesaid, did willfully and unlawfully
advertise and hold themselves out ag practicing and entitled to Practice
law and otherwise practicing law to undercover investigators of the Los
Angeles Department of Business and Consumer Affairs and others while not
an active member of the California State Bar or entitled to provide
immigration law advice under any other authority.

r

MCI 6126{A)/04
COUNT II

For a further, separate and second cause of action being a different
offense, belonging to the same class of crimes and offenses set forth in
Count I hereof, affiant further alleges that on or about 11/19/15, at and
in the City of Log Angeles, in the County of Los Angeles, State of
California, a migsdemeanor, to wit, violation of Section 22442 .2{a) of the



.. and place last aforesaid, didg willfully and unlawfully, fail to

inch in height and width in Bnglieh and in the native language of the
immigration consultant’s clientele, to wit, Spanish, that contains the
following information:

& statement that the immigration consultant is not an attorney
and the full name, address, and evidence of compliance with
the applicable bonding requirement, including the bond onumber,

while, for compensation, having been eéngaged in the businesg of, or acting
in the capacity of, an immigration consultant without having been
authorized to practice law or authorized by federal law to represent
persons before the Board of Immigration Appeals or the United States
Citizenship and Immigration Services, which ig made a misdemeanor pursuant

Counts I and II hereof, affiant further allegee that on or about 11/19/1s,
at and in the City of Los Angeles, in the County of lLog Angeles, State of
California, a misdemeanor, to wit, violation of Section 22442.3 of the
California Business and Profesgions Code wag committed by EDDIE RIVAS

is made a misdemeanor Pursuant to Section 22445(b) of the Buginess and

22443.3(a) /04



I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed at __ Zes Aageles . California on __ Wrv /Y, 29/ .
VOLUNTARY APPEARANCE G, HaiZemss,

Department 48 Esther Martinez

Log Angeles Superior Court Declarant and Complainant

December 15, 2018
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA “FILED
Superior Court of California

COUNTY:

Caunty of Los Angeles
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
PLAINTIFF: ) APR 1 O 2017
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA Shervi . Cartey“ xecutive Officer/C
DEFENDANT; . ) B_Y , Depl
Ee}\b\\q, Rivos o 3 \o\ Elisa Mukapz-Tenorio
MISDEMEANOR ADVISEMENT OF RIGHTS, SRS RER: P
| WAIVER, AND PLEA FORM LCSOTY |53
INSTRUCTIONS

Fill out this form if you wish to plead guilty or
applicable item only if you understand it, and si
your case, the possible sentence, or the informa

RIGHT TO AN ATTORNEY

1. I understand that | have the right to be represented by an attorn

no contest to the charges against you. Initial the box for ea
gn and date the form on page 3. If you have any questions abg
tion on this form, ask your attorney or the judge.

INITIALS

, | may be asked to pay all or part of the cost of that attorney, if | can afford to. |

....................................................................................

NATURE OF THE CHARGES (Complete all items you are charged with.)
2. lunderstand that | am charged with the following offense(s):

Bos. % (e B Cla0,(S) - 22492 .2 (N 204433

7

TYPE OF OFFENSE(S) AND SECTION NUMBER(S) ’ i 2.
3. If applicable - | am also charged with having the following prior conviction(s):

" LIST OFFENSE(S), CASE NUMBER(S) AND DATE(S) Cﬁ‘

- I am also charged with violating the probation order in the following case(s)

4. If appiicable

CASE NUMBER(S) AND DATE(S)

5. lunderstand tﬁe charge(s) against-me, and the possible pleas and defenses
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

6. RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL - | understand that | have the right to a speedy,
trial, I would be presumed innocent, and | could not be convicted unless 1
convinced of my guilt beyond a reasonable doubt

7. RIGHT TO CONFRONT WITNESSES - | understand that | have the right to. confront and Cross-4¢=~
examine all witnesses testifying againstme ..o

8. RIGHT AGAINST SELF-INCRIMINATION - | understand that | have the right to remain silent and not 7
i
—7{f

public jury trial. At the P
2 impartial jurors werg/] ’

incriminate myself, and the right to testify on my own behalf. | understand that by pleading guilty
Or no contest, or admitting other conviction(s) or probation violation(s), | am incriminating myself ...

9. RIGHT TO PRODUCE EVIDENCE - | understand that | have the right to present evidence and to

have the Court issue subpoenas to bring into court all withesses and evidence favorable to me, at
no cost to me

PRU-200 (Rev. 1-2013) Continued on reverse Mnn



RIGHTS ON CHARGES OF OTHER CONVICTION(S) AND PROBATION VIOLATION(S)

10. if applicabie - 1 understand that | have the right to an attorney, the right to a jury trial, the right to
confront witnesses, the right against self-incrimination, and the right to produce evidence for all the
charges against me, including any charged prior conviction(s) or probation violation(s). However,
for a charge of violating probation, | do not have the right to a jury trial, although | do have the right
{0 @ hearing DEFOrE @ JUAGE .....c.oorvri v reisrmros s s

WAIVER OF RIGHTS

Understanding all this, for all the charges against me, including any prior conviction(s) or probation
violation(s):

11. 1 give up my right to an attorney, and | choose to represent myself. (Does not apply if you have an atiorney.)...
12.1 give up my right to a jury T RO Uo OO OO PO P P T PP TR LIS T LRI
13. | give up my right to confront and Cross-eXaming WItNESSES ...o.covvrireni e
14. | give up my right to remain silent and to not incriminate myself ...

15. § give up my right to produce evidence and witnesses on my own behalf
CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST

16. Penalty: | understand that the possible consequences for the offense(s) charged include the
foliowing:

. 3 -

« BF 26 QO — 365 @) zﬁ\,Oom
SECTION NUMBER JAIL - MIN. MAX. FINE - MIN. 7 MAX.
OTHER CONSEQUENCES :

. RF 20D D O — ZbS 2,000— %0 00
SECTION NUMBER JAIL - MIN. MAX. FINE - MIN. MAX.
OTHER CONSEQUENCES :

- %

o RF MUIS O — 369 2,000 =N 000
SECTION NUMBER JAlL - MIN. MAX. FINE - MIN. MAX.
OTHER CONSEQUENCES :

L
SECTION NUMBER JAiL - MIN. MAX, FINE - MiN. MAX.
OTHER CONSEQUENCES ©

9
SECTION NUMBER JAIL - MIN. MAX, FINE - MIN. MAX.
OTHER CONSEQUENCES !

[ ]

SECTION NUMBER JAIL - MIN. MAX. FINE - MIN. MAX.
OTHER CONSEQUENCES

17 1 understand that in addition to the fine, the Court will add assessments which will significantly

increase the amount | must pay. | will also be ordered to make restitution and to pay a restitutionc?

fine up to $1000, uniess the Court finds compelling and extraordinary reasons not to impose the

B oo oo oo eere et eetseaen e ek SRR R 4
18. 1 understand that if | am not a citizen, a plea of guilty or no contest (nolo contendere) could resuit(

in my deportation, exclusion from admission to this country, of denial of naturalization..................o.

INITIALS ¥

16.

PRU-200 (Rev. 1-2013) See next page Zf:’age 2 of




CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST (Continued) INITIALS

19. 1 understand that a plea of no contest will have exactly the same effect in this Case as a plea
guitty, but it cannot be used against me in ivi i ' %j’ 7}

a civil lawsuit unless the offense is punishable as

........................

#

20. 1 unHé_rstand that any plea entered in this case may be grounds for violating probation or paroled
which has previously been granted to me in any other case y

PLEA(S} . - . . _ 4
21. | hereby freely and voluntarily plead to the following:
] GUILTY OR NO CONTEST
Bos. +« Fro S (e B S {IR NN é
LIST CHARGE(S)

22.1 understand that | have the right to a delay of from 6 hours to 5 days prior to being sentenced/[t
give up this right and agree to be sentenced at this time

23.If applicable - [ freely and voluntarily admit the other
understand that this admission will increase the penalties which are imposed on me........... .

24, if applicable - | freely and voluntarily admit the probation violation(s) that | listed on this form and ¢
give up my right to a hearing before a judge regarding the probation violation(s)

25. If applicable - | understand that | have the right to enter my plea before, and to be sentenced by, a
judge. 1 give up this right and agree to enter my plea before, and to be sentenced by: /f

A

conviction(s) that | fisted on this form. +
which are imposed on me

TEMPORARY JUDGE'S NAME

}

A

7
*DEFENDANT'’S SIGNATéRE: /j C DATE: _gf—/0~/ 7

\_/\/

ATTORNEY’S STATEMENT

I'am the attorney of record for the defendant. 1 have reviewed the form and any addenda with my client. | have
explained each of the defendant's rights to the defendant and answered all of the defendant’s questions with
regard to this plea. | have also discussed the facts of the defendant's case with the defendant, and explained

the consequences of this plea, the elements of the offense(s), and the possible defenses. | concur in this plea
and in the defendant’s decision to waive his or her constitutional rights.

SIGNATURE OF DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY DATE

PRU-200 (Rev. 1.2013) Continued on revarce



INTERPRETER’S STATEMENT {if applicable)

|, having been sworn or having a written oath on file, certify that | truly translated this form to the defendant in the
language indicated below. The defendant stated that (s)he understood the contents of the form, and then (s)he
initialed and signed the form.

Language: [ Spanish 03 Other (specify):

COURT INTERPRETER'S SIGNATURE TYPE OR PRINT NAME DATE

COURT’S FINDINGS AND ORDER

The Court, having reviewed this form and any addenda, and having questioned the defendant concerning the
defendant’s constitutional rights and the defendant's admission of prior conviction(s) and probation violation(s), if
any, finds that the defendant has expressly, knowingly, understandingly and intelligently waived his or her
constitutional rights. The Court finds that the defendant's plea(s) and admission(s) are freely and voluntarily
made with an understanding of the nature and consequences thereof, and that there is a factual basis for the
plea(s). The Court accepts the defendant's plea(s), the defendant’s admission of prior conviction(s) anc
probation violation(s), if any, and orders this form filed and incorporated in the docket by reference as thougt
fully set forth therein.

a0

DATE

: THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED IS A FULL, TRUE -

v\ AND CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL ON FILE AND OF RECORD IN MY OFFICE.
24 SHERRI R. CARTER, EXECUTIVE OFFICER/CLERK OF THE SUPERIOR COURT OF

W¥'S/  THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE COUNTY.OEA DS ANGELES. - .

Mested. 227 B
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Suvrerior ( RT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY ofF Los  GELes
MISDEMEANU~ SENTENCING MEMORANDUM - GENERAL MISDEMEANORS

= ¢ Mdhe_bonglla. e (T 00094

Dme:q a0 - = IOeph'Div.: 65 IProsecmor:—T-(A\J 19 M ‘.T}\f\ Defense Aty: '?(O ‘Pﬂ\

Judge: Clerk; Reporier: Interprgter/Language:
21 Ja_ S NG
A nment For Judgm,

Arraignment for judgment and timc?r ﬁn&:ing waived. There is no legal cause why judgment should not now be pronounced. E) \l—'P
Code

s to Count , a violation of § fthe [ ] Penal Code | JHE&S Code | J Wal Code [ ] veh. Code [1
Sentence

1. [ ] Probation is denied. Defendant is to serve .. days in the Los Angeles County Jail, forthwith, [ ] consecutive to [ 1doncurrent
Defendant Is to receive creditof ____ days actial pius____days GTIWT, foratotal of ____ days. [ [ Time may be served in any penal institution,

2, [ ] Payafinaof§ plus penalty assessments.

3. [ | Pay the fines and assessments as set forth In paragraph 21 below.

4. [ ] Exacution of the foregoing sentence is suspended (ESS), and the following conditional sentence is imposed:

Co

ition r of Probation (PC
[>¢npositicn of sentence is suslnded {IS8) [ ] with supervision by county probation officer (format probation),

Or a period of __B years/nf pon the following terms and conditions:
1. [ ] Serve ____ days in tha (5% Angeles County Jait, [ Jeonsecutiveto_ - [ ]concurrent with [ ] Suspended.
Defendant to receive custedy credit of days actual plus _____ days GT/WT, for a total of days. [ | Time may be served in any penal institution,
[ ]Time may be served on cansecutive weekends of two days each, beginning . {T72)
[ ]Time may be served in any city jail baving actual confinement, at the defendants expense, (021)
{ ! Defendant may not participate in Sheriffs home detention/EHM per PC§1203.016(e). (771) [ ] Work furtough not allowed.

2N jPerform - days of Community Labor (CalTrans, MTA-MAARS, sti removal, beach cleanup, community cieanup, L or
[

perform ____ days/hours of approved Community Service, with credit for cays actual, Sign up for such work only at a court-approved volunteer center or in the cleri's
office. Failure to complate all gourt-ordered work without excuse may resuttin iail. [ }Tais work s in lieu of the days of jall specified in paragraph 1 above.

3. w Pay a fine in the sum of 5_IAJ plus penalty assessments, of in default thereof serve additional days in County jall, consecufive, or
perform ____ days of Community Labor or Commimity Service, [ ]Defendant elects jail isi tieu of fine, forthwith, consecutive to all other time.

Fing may be paid in monthly instaliments of not less than § -(124) [ ]Defendant fo report o Financial Evalustor to work cut a fine payment plan. (163)

0 not own, use or possess dangerous of deadly weapons, inch ing firearms or other concealable weapons. (230) | ] The weapon invalved in this case is ordered
confiscated and destroyed by the arresting agency. (234) [ ] This protibition is for 10 years as fo any firearm pursuant to C§12021(c)(1) (

5. [ ] Do notuse of threaten to use force or violence against any person. Do not annoy, harass or molest any victim er witness in this case, especially s
.91

6. Stay[ ] _____ [ 1108 yards away from and have no contact with ,{902)

7. Stay[ ... 1 }100yards from I ] the location of the amest Pl . (904)

8. [ | Obey any Protective Order issued in this or any other case. {579) [ | Defendant is served with & copy of the Prolective Order in open court. (578)

9. Enroll within 30 days and successfully complete: . (373)

10.{ ] Do not own, use, or possess any contralled subsiances, or associated paraphernalia, except with valid prescription, and stay away from places where users, buyers or seflers

congregate. Do net associate with persons known by you to be controlied substance users o sellers, except while attending a drug treatment program. (926}
.[ ] Do not consume or possess any alcoholic beverage and stay ot of places where they are the chief item of sale. {901)
{ ] Do not consume or possess any alcoholic beverages before you fum age 21. {344}

12.[ 1 Attend Alcoholics / Narcotics / Sexual Compulsives Anonymous meetings at the rate of _ meeting(s) per week for weeks, (356/473)
#3.[ ] Submit your person and property to search and seizure al any §me of the day or night any peace oificer, with of withoul a warrant, probable cause, or reasonable suspicion. (576}
14.[ ] Use only your true name, stated to be; . Do not give any false informalion fo any peace officar at any time. (535}

15.[ ] Do not assoclate with any persons known by you 1o be criminat street gang membars, affiliates, or associates, and stay away from 2 places whete you know such persons
cangregale, except in an authorized anti-gang program. (918) Obey any gang injunction that applies to you. {398}

16.{ | Do nat own, use, possess, buy or attempt to buy, or sel any aerosol paint containers, Jelt §p markers, any glass or metal scribes, any masonry, glass or carbide drill hit, any grinding
slons, any awl, chisel, carbide scribe, and any other device or implerent capabie of marking or marring any properly or writing any grafif. (921} -

17.[ | Pursuant to VC & 13202.8, your driver's license is suspended for one year. (247} You are fo surrender your license to the clerk forthwith, (Vandalism cases) (273)

18.] ] Submit to booking and release within seven days. Penal Code 7(21),

18.[ | Make restitution to victim ___pursuant fo PC §1202.4(f) {048) [ Jin zn amount fo be determined at a hearing. (067) [ ] Harveywaiver taken.
§ ]in the stipulated sumof § . {048} { | per any final civil judgment against you. (119} f | Liability is admitted but amount is disputed.

20.[ ] Ifyour are deported from of otkerwise leave the Uniled Stales, robly the Courl [and Progation] in writing of your address and (elephone number oUlskEE The URMed SIatos witin 72 hours o
deportation or departure. Confinue to pay alt of your financial ob¥gations to the Court [and to Prebation] while cutside the United States. (474)

21.Pay aHi of the Following (check all tha! apgly):

o
TSyl A8

Arestitution fine of | 15100.00, { | $_ 8./ per PC51202.4{b) through (2). (098} [ } Cost of probation services per PC 1203.1b, | ] as determined by the Probation Officer,
1\% 1 The restitution fine is calculated per formula set oul in PCE1202.4(b)2). subject to a hearing if requested 1 ]in the amount of $_____ per month, -
‘m A probation revocation restitution fine in the same amount as the restitution fine, per PC [ ] A drug program feg of $150.00 (per drug count except §11357h)} per HAS §11372.7(a).
§1202.44, payment is steyed unti probation is revoked and sentence imposed. [ ] Acrime prevention finre of $50.00 per PC §1202 5 (PC thefirelated and vandalism).{SA:CP)
| ] Acriminal convictionfacliities of $30.00 per Gov't Code §70373(a).(SA.CC} | ) Asex offendar fine of | ] $300.00 (1#offense) [ }$500 {2 and subsequent offenses} per PC
1 Acriminal fine surcharge of $____ per Penal Code §1465,7 (20% of base fine).[SA:AB) §280.3, plus penalty assessment,
A court security fee dQZG.OO per PC §1465.8(a)( 1). (per count) (SA:SF) f ] Achild abuse prevention restitution fine of per PC 284 iy
{ § Acrime lab fee of $50.00 plus penalty assassment per H&S Code §113725 {164) {child abuse cages, $1,000.00 maximum).
[ § An administrative screening fee of $25.00 per PC §1463.07/GC 20550(% (D released 0OR.) [ ] Adomestic violence payment of [ 1$400.00 [ 1$____ per PC 1263.087{a)(5}. {$400 min.)
[ ] Acitation processing fee of $10.00 per PC §1483.07 and GC §28550(0) [ ] Acriminal justice adminlstration fee of § , payable o the focat amesting agency, per Govt
(D clied and released in field or a&ﬁﬂﬁy) W .b / M Code §§ 29550(c), 20550.1 or 20550.2 (agency's actual cost). .
al Ly ool - %!7 Ser—_0-0)
EZ.MObey all laws and orders of the court (541] 1 | a0 Mﬂg&@on@ﬁwﬁms of the Probatian Depariment. (547 = -

Defendant acknowledges that helshe understands and accepts the faregoing terms and conditions of prubaﬁ@wjﬂ D) MJ(\{\_{L)\ i Lt
| Defendant ardered to pay attomey fees, [ ]inthe amount of § [ ]in the amgurt determined by the Finaficial Evaluai VQ\
0 thi nt

\@Connishﬂltegallous\fp f L. are dismissedfstricken on the People's motion pursuant to Penal Code Sectic{ﬂ'BBS

Pay fines/fees by: iO\_lO\_lQ) (IENY - | Festiton-HrearinrmBAADRR=—— 5.5\-' 1 3

Compliance Dales: Defendant is ordered Yo appear in person on each of the following compiiance dates. (683 st . N P
- 4
Surrender forjall. ™~ OF/ Brogee: : w0 o

Compiete workic-s by: | () ‘ 10 \ 1B Q_]%\ Other:

Defendant understands, accepts and agrees to com;';iy with the terms and conditions of this conditional sentence and agress to return to Court as ordered.

, Defendant's Signature: I Attorney's Sighature: L _ ’

Defendant's Telephone: U

JudgelContmissionst of the Superior Courl
GRW 086 (Rev 5/1/09) DISTRIBUTION: White - Court Copy Canary - DefendangCop

Defendant's Address:




THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ATTACHED IS A FULL, TRUE
AND CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL ON FILE AND OF RECORD IN MY OFFICE.
SHERRI R. CARTER EXECUTIVE OFFICER/CLERK OF THE SUPERIOR COURT OF
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

Attested: {/éj 7/'% RY / ,J/AML‘ :
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~——= .. SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
The Pgople Ot the,Sta_te_of (_:alifornia, : . : . Ongmal Case Number G C'S-OQ()G‘
. S L '_ PLAlNTIFF , _-_ :' . - _ Original Booleng Number
8 QP \\ R .Ongmel Charge(s) @? $ @}nfm("’)l E?SM) 3‘
‘é}...‘qh 5 ,’«’g . . | - 5 .w-s,. e
. %é\ G *.Q b O\ - - ' REQUEST FOR REVOCATION OF PROBATlON ‘

DEFENDANT(S) - . /. NOTICE OF PROBATION VIOLATION HEARING,
: - : .AND DECLARAT[ON IN SUPPORT THEREOF '

The P‘P‘QQ}‘%’, m%q‘ that the Court revoke defendants probatlon Oge?lendar the matter for a hearmg on said revocation

-SJ it _r% PR ey 2 at 8: 30 a.m., oras soon thereafter as counsel can be heard
in Dr\nsron AN ' of thls Court at _ — ; _ , and:
~[]. Issue & wal rant for the arrest of defendant - IR TRy Set bail in the sumof $ . L
El Fiemand det dant_ Lased upon alleged Prebaﬂon Vrolat|on S S lssue a "No Ball" holdfwarrant for defendant
A Volunta Appearance Letter will be sent 1o defendant, and ' s :
e r,\ 10, 20y 7 _ . e : LA _
I declare that on . , 20 , the dete_ndant was placed oh _ months probation

- by the Court in the above-entltled case.
N Defendant has since been ‘ [:] charged wnh or [] ccnwcted of avrolation of

in. . T N v‘;.,, ase Number | ..
: mf b ' §n ‘:‘ ﬁ,icﬁ s etqu b thei (] i%;’;“ $ LT L R

Defendant has smce been arrestedfor a vrolatlon of

e

I received the. attached report(s), mcorporated hereln as Exhibrt A from : . (name of arresting agency)
AmE The l.,os Angeles Police Department o The Clty AttorneyLsg_{lc |tnes§A istange Coordinaigr. .
‘[ The California Highway Patrol - - Other Person(s) t{%‘g‘ a hainhibill e f

[] Other Law Enforcement Agency

wlhe facts reflected tn those reports indicate that the def_endant is in \nolatron of the followang term(s) of probatron FILED
§ 1. Obey all laws, rules, and orders of the Court; = o o S . Superior Court of California
2. Do notcommrtasrmslaroffense, R IR T s e County of Los Angeles
71 3. Do not own carry or possess any. dangerous of deadly weapon or irrearm SRR '
i 4..Do not annoy, harass molest strike, threaten, assault, batter or othemﬂse drsturb :he peace ot (name) MAY 3 1 ?ﬂﬂ
] 8 Stay away from the persen resrdence vehacles and place of employment of ' ) _ . '
S S ‘._Sh:elj_lji__R-(@n_stkr, Executive OfficerlCIerk
6. 'Do not telephone send wrltten correspondence to or contact L PR el il i A '
H
o
0
01
o
[11
SO
i [:] pe heanng and court order$ ::'“ . [0 per civil judgement;
1:] Alcohel Treatment Program; - o |_—_| AIDS Education Program
1:] Drug Flehablhtatlon Program o O Other -

) D Domestlc Vrolence Prevention Program;
[ 19. Do not associate with- any known gang member(s), and especrally do not assocrate with any members of the

gang;

] 20. Other:

On mformanon \and belief, | declare under penalty of perjury that the»,ipre%,mg is true and correct to the best of my kncte%edge,
this : day of

12-NON DUE FORM CA 240 (8/01) . (/ 'q__)-‘,:.m
- Lomepprd ST
PART 1-COURT  PART 2-DEFENDANT  PART 3-CITY ATTORNEY *

REDI TV CITY ATTORNEY
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MINUTE ORDER
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

DATE PRINTED: 07/03/17

CASE NO. 6C300094
THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

VS,
DEFENDANT (01: EDDIE RIVAS BONILLA

BAIL: APPEARANCE AMOUNT DATE RECEIPT OR SURETY COMPANY REGISTER
DATE OF BAIL POSTED BOND NO. NUMBER

CASE FILED ON 11/16/16.

COMPLAINT FILED, DECLARED OR SWORN TO CHARGING DEFENDANT WITH HAVING COMMITTED
ON OR ABOUT 11/19/15 IN THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, THE FOLLOWING OFFENSE(S)

OF;

COUNT 01: 6126(A) B&P MISD

ON 06/30/17 AT 830 AM IN CRIM JUSTICE CTR (LAC) DEPT 053
CASE CALLED FOR PROBATION VIOLATION HEARING

PARTIES: DEBORAH BRAZIL (JUDGE) ELISA MUNOZ-TENORIO (CLERK)
JACK SCHEINFELD (REP) TRAVIS AUSTIN (CA)

DEFENDANT IS PRESENT IN COURT, AND REPRESENTED BY WESLEY R. SKLARK PRIVATE
COUNSEL

THE DEFENDANT IS ADVISED OF RIGHTS RE HEARING ON VIOLATION AND WAIVES RIGHTS
TO A REVOCATION HEARING.

DEFENDANT AND COUNSEL STIPULATE TO VIOLATION OF PROBATION IN OPEN COURT.
COURT FINDS DEFENDANT IN VIOLATION OF PROBATION.

PROBATION REVOKED

PROBATION REINSTATED

PROBATION IS CONTINUED ON THE SAME TERMS AND CONDITIONS WITH THE FOLLOWING
MODIFICATIONS:

AS TO COUNT (01):

THE COURT FINDS THE DEFENDANT IN VIOLATION OF PROBATION FOR

PROBATION VIOLATION HEARING
PAGE NO. 1 HEARING DATE: 06/30/17



CASE NO. 6C300094
DEF NO. 01 DATE PRINTED 07/03/17

FAILURE TO OBEY ALL LAWS.

éO DAYS OF COUNTY JAIL IS IMPOSED AND SUSPENDED; IF THE
DEFENDANT VIOLATION PROBATION COURT WILL IMPOSE JAIL TIME.

+HE DEFENDANT IS ORDERED TO PERFORM AN ADDITIONAL 10 DAYS OF
COMMUNITY LABOR.

+HE DEFENDANT IS ORDERED TO PAY AN ADDITION $500 PLUS PENALTY
AND ASSESSMENTS BY OCTOBER 2, 2017.

+HE DEFENDANT IS ORDERED TO COOPERATE WITH THE STATE BAR.

THE DEFENDANT IS ORDERED NOT TO DESTROY ANY CLIENT FILES.

+HE DEFENDANT IS ORDERED TO COOPERATE WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF
CONSUMER AFFAIRS.

+HE MATTER IS SET FOR PROOF OF PROGRESS OF COMMUNITY LABOR AND
PAYMENT OF THE FINE ON OCTOBER 2, 2017, AT 8:30 A.M. 1IN
DEPARTMENT 353.

DMV ABSTRACT NOT REQUIRED

NEXT SCHEDULED EVENT:
10/02/17 830 AM PROGRESS REPORT DIST CRIM JUSTICE CTR (LAC) DEPT 053

CUSTODY STATUS: ON PROBATION

PROBATION VIOLATION HEARING
PAGE NO, 2 HEARING DAYE: 06/30/17
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DECLARATION OF FRANK CAPETILLO

I, Frank Capetillo, declare as follows:

1. I am currently employed as an investigator for the Los Angeles City Attorney’s Office
(“LACA”) and have been employed in this capacity since 2016. [ assisted with the trial preparation in
the case of People v. Eddie Bonilla, Case # 6CJ00094,

2. I make this declaration in support of the State Bar’s application pursuant to Business
and Professions Code section 6126.3. The facts set forth in this declaration are personally known to
me unless otherwise stated, and as to those, I am informed and believe them to be true.

3. As part of my duties, I was tasked with obtaining certified documents from state and
federal agencies that establish Eddie Bonilla, individually, and Servicio Latino, a corporation, was not
authorized to practice law, was not accredited by the federal government to perform immigration
services, and was not registered as an immigration consultant. As a result, I was able to obtain the
following documents:

a. A certified letter from the State Bar of California, dated November 20, 2015,
indicating that the State Bar of California found no record showing that any
person by the name of Eddie R. Bonilla has been admitted to the practice of law
in this state. A true and correct copy of this certified letter is attached hereto as
Exhibit 1.

b. A declaration from the Executive Office for Immigration Review, dated March
22,2017, indicating that a diligent search found no record of Servicio Latino or
Eddie Rivas Bonilla having ever applied for accreditation with the Recognition
and Accreditation program for the U.S. Department of Justice, Executive Office
for Immigration Review. A true and correct copy of this declaration is attached
hereto as Exhibit 2.

C. A certificate of no record from the California Secretary of State, indicating a
diligent search found no record of a filing pursuant to Section 224431 of the
California Business and Professions Code for Eddie Rivas Bonilla. A true and

correct copy of this document is attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
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d. A certificate of no record from the California Secretary of State, indicating a
diligent search found no record of a filing pursuant to Section 22443.1 of the
California Business and Professions Code for Servicio Latino Legal Office. A
true and correct copy of this document is attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

e. A certificate of no record from the California Secretary of State, indicating a
diligent search found no record of a filing pursuant to Section 22443.1 of the
California Business and Professions Code for Servicio Latino Legal Office, Inc,
A true and correct copy of this document is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

f A certificate of no record from the California Secretary of State, indicating a
diligent search found no record of a filing pursuant to Section 22443.1 of the
California Business and Professions Code for SLLSCO. A true and correct copy
of this document is attached hereto as Exhibit 6.

4. On April 10, 2017, T was present in Division 53 of the Clara Shortridge Foltz Criminal
Justice Center, Los Angeles County, when Bonilla pled “no contest” to violating Business and
Professions Code section 6126, the unauthorized practice of law. Bonilla was placed on twenty-four
months of summary probation and, amongst other conditions, was ordered to obey all laws and

coordinate and cooperate with the Los Angeles Department of Business and Consumer Affairs.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is
true and correct.

Executed this 27th day of June, 2017, at Los Angeles, California.

rd ottt
7z

Frank Capetillo
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THE STATE BAR
OF CALIFORNIA

180 HOWARD STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94105-1617 TELEPHONE: 888-800-3400

November 20, 2015

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

This is to certify that undersigned Custodian has conducted a diligent search of
the membership records of the State Bar of California and found no record
showing that any person by the name of EDDIE R. BONILLA has been
admitied to the practice of law in this state, or has registered as a member of
the State Bar of California, or has paid fees as an active or inactive member
thereof from the date of the organization of the State Bar on July 19, 1927, to
date hereof. Although the State Bar has a complete record of those persons
admitted since its organization, its record of those admitted prior thereto is not
necessarily complete, as it has been assembled from various unrelated sources.

THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA

Searite T lA

Kathan Lambert
Custodian of Membership Records



- EXHIBIT 2



U.S. Department of Justice
Executive Office for Immigration Review

Office of Legal Access Programs

Recognition and Accreditation Program
3107 Leesburg Pike, Suite 1900
Falls Church, Virginia 2204}

DECLARATION OF STEVEN LANG

I, Steven Lang, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, declare under penalty of perjury as follows:

1.

I am the Program Director of the Office of Legal Access Programs (“OLAP”), who is
responsible for oversight of the Recognition and Accreditation (“R&A”) program for the
U.S. Department of Justice, Executive Office for Immigration Review (“EOIR™).

As the Program Director, I am responsible for overseeing all applications involving request
for recognition and accreditation under the provisions of 8§ C.F.R. § 1292.2 and for
maintaining the “Recognition and Accreditation (R&A) Roster reports.” A copy of the
roster reports can be found at https://www.justice.gov/eoir/recognition-accreditation-roster-

reports.

I have conducted a diligent search and find that the R&A Program has no record of
applications for recognition ever being filed by Servicio Latino. Therefore, this
organization is not presently recognized by OLAP; nor have they, according to our records,
held such status in the past.

[ have conducted a diligent search and find that the R&A Program has no record of
applications for accreditation ever being filed for Eddie Rivas Bonilla. Therefore, this
individual is not presently accredited by OLAP; nor has he, according to our records, held
such status in the past.

The information provided herein is based upon my review of the records maintained at the
Executive Office for Immigration Review, Office of Legal Access Programs, and available
to me in my official capacity

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information contained in this declaration is true and
correct.

Vs
Dated: March€< 2017
Falls Church, VA

Recognition & Accreditation Program Coordinator
Executive Office for Immigration Review
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State of California
Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF NO RECORD

I, ALEX PADILLA, Secretary of State of the State of California, hereby
certify:

That | am the Official Custodian of records for the Office of the Secretary of
State. In that capacity | have conducted a diligent search and have failed to find
any records of a filing in this office in accordance with Section

22443.1 of the Business and Professions Code of the State of California for the

following:

Eddie Rivas Bonilla

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | execute

- this certificate and affix the Great
Seal of the State of California this
10th day of March 2017

ALEX PADILLA
Secretary of State

NP-25 (REV 01/2015)
SF-42328
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State of California
Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF NO RECORD

I, ALEX PADILLA, Secretary of State of the State of California, hereby
certify: ‘

That | am the Official Custodian of records for the Office of thé Secretary of
State. In that capacity | have conducted a diligent search and have failed to find
any records of a filing in this office in accordance with Section

22443.1 of the Business and Professions Code of the State of California for the

following:

Servicio Latino Legai Office

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | execute
this certificate and affix the Great
Seal of the State of California this
10th day of March 2017

ALEX PADILLA
Secretary of State

NP-25 (REV 01/2015)
SF-42328
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State of California
Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF NO RECORD

I, ALEX PADILLA, Secretary of State of the State of California, hereby
certify:

That I am the Official Custodian of records for the Office of the Secretary of
State. In that capacity | have conducted a diligent search and have failed to find
any records of a filing in this office in accordance with Section
22443.1 of the Business and Professions Code of the State of California for the

following:

Servicio Latino Legal Office, Inc.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | execute
this certificate and affix the Great
Seal of the State of California this
10th day of March 2017

ALEX PADILLA
Secretary of State

NP-25 (REV 01/2015)
SF.42328
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State of California
Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF NO RECORD

I, ALEX PADILLA, Secretary of State of the State of California, hereby
certify: : P

That | am the Official Custodian of records for the Office of the Secretary of
State. In that capacity | have conducted a diligent search and have failed to find
any records of a filing in this office in accordance with Section
22443.1 of the Business and Professions Code of the State of California for the

following:

SLLSCO

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | execute
this certificate and affix the Great
Seal of the State of California this
14th day of March 2017

ALEX PADILLA
Secretary of State

NP-25 (REV 01/2015}

SF-42328
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STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA

OFFICE OF CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
STEVEN J. MOAWAD, No. 190358
CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL

DONNA S. HERSHKOWITZ, No. 172480
DEPUTY CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
SUSAN CHAN, No. 233229
ASSISTANT CHIEF TRIAL COUNSEL
MANUEL JIMENEZ, No. 218234
SUPERVISING ATTORNEY
ELIZABETH STINE, No. 256839
SENIOR TRIAL COUNSEL

845 South Figueroa Street

Los Angeles, California 90017-2515
Telephone: (213) 765-1342

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, CENTRAL DISTRICT

Case No. 88170154

In the Matter of the Assumption of )
Jurisdiction Over the )
Unauthorized Law Practice of ) DECLARATION OF ELIZABETH
) STINE RE EX PARTE NOTICE
EDDIE RIVAS BONILLA )
doing business as SERVICIO LATINO ) [Rules of Court, rules 3.1200 et seq.;
LEGAL OFFICE, SLLSCO, INC. )} Bus & Prof. Code §§ 6125, 6126(a),
) 6126.3, & 6030]
)
) [Exempt from Filing Fees Under Gov.
) Code §6030]
)
) Hearing Date:
) Time:
) Dept.:
)

I, ELIZABETH STINE, hereby declare:

1. All statements made herein are based on my personal knowledge, except for those stated
under information and belief, and, if called up, I could competently testify to them. [ am an
attorney licensed to practice law in the State of California. I am employed as a Senior Trial
Counsel in the Office of Chief Trial Counsel for the State Bar of California. I am the attorney

assigned to this matter,

-1-

DECLARATION OF ELIZABETH STINE RE EX PARTE NOTICE
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On Monday, July 3, 2017, at approximately 9:30 a.m., I telephoned Eddie Rivas Bonilla
and informed him that on Thursday, July 6, 2017, at 8:30am, I would be appearing ex parte at the
Superior Court of California for the County of Los Angeles, located at 111 North Hill Street, Los
Angeles, California 90012 on an application for assumption of jurisdiction over the unauthorized
law practice of law Eddie Rivas Bonilla, dba Servicio Latino Legal Office, SLLSCO, Inc.
pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6126.3. Bonilla stated he would cooperate
with the State Bar and not oppose any application made by the State Bar for assumption by the
court of jurisdiction over Bonilla’s practice, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
6126.3.

2. On Wednesday, July 5, 2017, at approximately 2:00pm, I sent Eddie Rivas Bonilla an
email reminding him that on Thursday, July 7, 2017, at 8:30 a.m., I would be appearing ex parte
at the Superior Court of Caiifornia. for the County of Los Angeles, Iocated at 111 North Hill
Street, Los Angeles, California 90012 on an application for assumption of jurisdiction over the
unauthorized law practice of law and attached a courtesy copy of the Ex Parte Application for
assumption of jurisdiction over his unauthorized law practice.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 5th day of July, 2017, at Los Angeles, California.

ECRSK

Elizabeth Stine
Declarant




